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Additional copies
Copies of this annual report can be obtained by:
n Visiting our website at www.statetrustees.com.au

This annual report details State Trustees’ business performance for the 2007/08 financial year.
At State Trustees we are committed to transparent and open reporting.
The report provides a concise summary of our performance for the financial year ending
30 June 2008. It reviews our performance against our strategic objectives and records
our financial performance in accordance with the requirements of the State Trustees
(State Owned Company) Act 1994 and other regulatory requirements.

n

Telephoning State Trustees on 9667 6444 or 1300 138 672 (local call cost from outside the metropolitan area)

Location
Our registered office and principal place of business is:
n 168 Exhibition Street, Melbourne, 3000 I Phone 9667 6444
Our customer service offices are at:
Suite 22, 2nd floor, 40 Montclair Avenue, Glen Waverley, 3150 I Phone 9667 6424

n
n

307 Main Street, Mornington, 3931

n

Personal Financial Solutions, 593 Little Bourke Street, Melbourne, 3000

State Trustees’ website can be accessed at www.statetrustees.com.au
For the cost of a local call, you can contact all our offices on 9667 6444 or 1300 138 672
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Introduction
State Trustees provides a comprehensive range of products and services
– Estate Planning (including Will making), Trustee, Executor and Personal
Financial Administration. These services are key to our core purpose – to
help people with their financial needs so they can make the most of their
opportunities.

State Trustees has been operating since 1939, when it was originally established as the Public Trust Office of Victoria.
State Trustees became a State Owned Company on 1 July 1994 under the State Trustees (State Owned Company)
Act 1994. It was the first Government Business Enterprise (GBE) in Victoria to gain full company status.
The conversion to company status was part of the then Government’s GBE reform program to deliver long-term public
benefits. The objective of the program was to make state-owned enterprises more efficient by exposing them to
competition from the private sector.
State Trustees has responded to the challenge of competition. Since July 1994, it has evolved from a public service
organisation to a competitive, efficient commercial organisation that recognises its responsibilities to support the
community, while operating on an even footing with the private sector.
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Chairman’s Report
The second year of delivery under State Trustees’ Strategic Plan
2006–2011 has seen solid performance against targets and further
evolution of Victoria’s own trustee service organisation.
Consistent effort across the business has enabled sound
progress on critical activities under the five strategic
areas of the strategic plan: products and services, people,
stakeholder relationships, operational excellence and
infrastructure. Success and strength on both financial and
social fronts has enabled the company to deliver on the
commercial and community responsibilities of our charter.

For our shareholder, last year’s final dividend of $2.269
million was approved, and at the end of the term, our
Directors recommended a total dividend for the 2007/08
financial year of $2.802 million.
This financial achievement is a credit to all employees
within the company and I thank everyone for their efforts.
However, given the truly unique and diverse nature of
our business, our success was not limited solely to the
financial sphere.

Building on the productivity and efficiency improvements
of the past two years, the 2007/08 scorecard for State
Trustees reflects further sound financial management in
a challenging fiscal market. Strong commercial acumen
delivered business development opportunities, enabled
strong revenue growth and increased the presence of
our services in the Victorian market. With an emphasis
on the traditional trustee line of products and services,
the company has grown its visibility and involvement in
the Victorian community and demonstrated the value
of the services it provides. By expanding the access to
State Trustees’ services through super fund alliances and
state-based organisations, we have increased our ability
to meet the challenges under our strategy, while increasing
the accessibility of core services for more Victorians.

Continued improvement in customer service and
operations was again a key focus of the year. With the
aim of gaining insights into the particular aspects of the
business that our clients actively value, an initiative was
also undertaken to understand customers’ expectations
and improve our performance in areas where these
needs were not being met.

Board
I would like to thank my fellow Directors for their good
stewardship of the organisation during this financial year.
During this term we farewelled one Director and welcomed
two new board members – with the departure of Alice
Williams in August and the addition of Julie Elliott and
Patrick Burroughs.

As a result, State Trustees enjoyed solid revenue growth
in core products.
The overall profit result of $4.15 million against a reforecast budget of $4.14 million was especially pleasing.

Alice left us after nearly seven years of sharing her
significant insight and wealth of experience in financial,
strategic and government regulatory policy matters. The
appointments of Julie and Patrick brought additional
strength to our commercially astute assembly and will
provide us with great professional oversight for the future.

Being more appropriately compensated for serving
Community Service Obligation (CSO) customers, through
the renegotiated contract with the Department of Human
Services, has made a significant impact on our ability to
achieve this year’s bottom line. A $390,000 increase in
Capital Commission also stood the organisation in stronger stead to mitigate the impact of lower management
fees and corporate investment revenue as a result of the
volatile financial market.

Julie’s strong experience in global corporations and
high-profile public sector boards spans more than 20
years and as National Manager, Business Advice for the
BT Financial Group, she brings significant value to the
Board.

This has meant that for the fifth consecutive year, State
Trustees has met its budget expectations. Of particular
note is our increase in revenue of 12 percent to $52.987
million, underpinning our operating result after tax of
$3.113 million.

Patrick has extensive experience within the financial
services, building and construction, manufacturing and
government (health, treasury and finance) sectors. Patrick
is currently a member of a number of boards including
MLC Nominees, the Royal Children’s Hospital, The
Companies Auditors and Liquidators Disciplinary Board
(CALDB), Pacifica Group and PFS Nominees.
The appointments of Julie and Patrick give me great
confidence in the breadth and depth of skill of the board
as I prepare for retirement from the position of Chairman
in November 2008.
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Assurance

Leadership team

During the year, the skill of our Board, company management and the unparalleled governance structures in
place, have demonstrated to those we support – as well
as our shareholder – that the fiduciary responsibilities of
this critical Victorian institution are well protected.

My congratulations to Managing Director, Tony Fitzgerald
and the Corporate Leadership Team for their work to
strengthen and build the company. The continued
commitment to State Trustees’ people through capability
development, additional personnel and empowerment to
meet the challenges they face, has enabled this strong
performance against all key measures.

In meeting the comprehensive compliance obligations
of Commonwealth and State legislation, we are actively
monitoring the requirements upon the organisation. This
has been achieved through internal regulation by our
Audit, Compliance and Investment Committees, Risk
Committee of Management, thorough internal and
external auditing, and a dedicated compliance team.

As I approach the final months of my Chairmanship with
State Trustees, I take great comfort in knowing that the
organisation is working hard to ensure it identifies and
meets the growing needs and challenges before our state.
It is endowed with great leaders, rigorous governance and
a drive to support Victorians that will continue to lead and
inspire success across all areas, for many decades to come.

The overlay of this prudence with direct parliamentary
scrutiny and high governance standards, should provide
great peace of mind for the Victorian Government.

Community
Two years into our Strategic Plan, we have demonstrated
robust achievement against performance targets. This
reflects an organisation with a clear understanding of
both the value and opportunities we can provide all
Victorians, and the passion and empowerment to realise
its full potential by virtue of that endeavour.

John H. M. Marcard Director 2002–2008
Chairman 2004–2008

Throughout 2007/08 our community responsibility came
to the fore as we demonstrated that commercial intelligence and growth are critical to enable the reinvestment
in the Victorian community that underpins the fabric of
State Trustees’ operations.
Through our grants program, community activities, local
sponsorships and engagement with local government,
State Trustees is working to help improve the quality of life
and potential for people from all walks of life and social
structures.
As an organisation, our people boast pride in this work
and confirm that our investment in the social fabric of
Victoria is a core factor in their high staff satisfaction.
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Our people
are vital to
our ongoing
business
success.

4

Managing
Director’s Report
State Trustees, a company wholly-owned by the State of Victoria,
is a unique organisation.
We have a duality of purpose with a business model
that allows us to operate in the public and private sector.
This establishes our capability to serve two distinct communities of clients – our commercial clients in estate and
financial planning, and our community in financial administration and support of more than 9,000 Victorians living
with a disability. This is an inspiring challenge that at the
same time offers opportunities for our business and our
mission to help our clients reach their full potential.

development approach has resulted in an increase of
28.6 percent in the value of the new Enduring Powers
of Attorney (EPAs) we manage. When EPA clients lose
capacity it is our responsibility, which we exercise through
our Attorneyships area, to protect and manage their
affairs in their best interests.
This year we successfully completed negotiations and implemented a new five year Community Services Obligation
(CSO) contract with the Department of Human Services,
which has resulted in a total of $14.681 million revenue
this financial year.

Since becoming a State Owned Company in 1994,
our focus has been on building and strengthening our
operational model across the private and public sectors.
Working together with peers in the Victorian Government
such as the Public Advocate, Department of Human
Services, Department of Treasury and Finance and the
Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal, along with
our industry peers in the legal and financial services
sector, we have been able to develop a viable business
model that also integrates with the Victorian community
services network.

Our community grants program continues to support
ventures that make a long-term difference in the
community and this year the total amount available
increased to $40,000.
Vital to our business and its ongoing success are our
people. Due to the diverse nature of our service offering,
we are fortunate to have a breadth of professional expertise in legal, financial, sales, marketing, administration,
corporate and community services. With such
diversity, our challenge has been to continually
inspire a whole-of-business culture for the clients
and community we serve. I am happy to report
that this year our staff turnover was reduced by
more than 30 percent compared to last
year. And I would also add that this
year, 82 percent of our workforce
completed the staff satisfaction
survey with an 80.4 percent
satisfaction rating.

In an example of our shift towards a more client-focused
business model, we have just completed a review of our
estate administration processes. Called Project Exspres,
we are already starting to see positive improvements to
our customer service experience. Next steps are to better
refine our workforce planning model to more accurately
match resources to workload.
This year we have also introduced a Client Value Index
as a benchmark for continuing our priority of delivering
excellent services that meet our clients’ and stakeholders’
needs. We also undertook an extensive restructure of our
investment products. Under the review we have now
teamed up with leading experts, State Street Australia
Limited and Russell Investment Management Limited, to
manage the critical elements of our administration and
investment services. This change will ensure that we have
the most appropriate investment processes, products and
strategies available to meet our clients' varied needs.

On behalf of State Trustees’
management and the Board,
I would like to take this opportunity to thank the team at
State Trustees for their continued
dedication and for achieving the
outcomes this year in line with our
2006–2011 Strategic Plan. As we
progress steadily through our Plan, we
look forward to continuing our delivery
of quality service to our clients and
stakeholders and to working together
for future opportunities.

State Trustees is one of the largest deceased estate
administration professionals in Victoria. For nearly 70
years we have been helping Victorians to make sensible
and informed decisions about planning and preparing
their Estates. Although society and laws have changed
dramatically over these years, a Will has a power and
principle second to none. The reality is that a Will is only
one part of a complex legal and financial portfolio that
requires specialist attention to ensure it is protected
and managed appropriately.
With an ageing population we have found a growing
need for the services we offer. Our improved business

Anthony G Fitzgerald Managing Director
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Our Core
Purpose,
Vision and
Values
Core Purpose:
To help people with their
financial needs so they
can make the most
of their opportunities

Vision:
To be known for
outstanding service
to our clients

We Value:
Being the best
at what we do
Acting with honesty
and integrity
Open communication
Encouraging
and recognising
achievement and
initiative
Respecting and
caring about each
other, our clients
and the community
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Our Products and Services
As a Trustee company, State Trustees offers
the following products and services:
Administration services Managing and protecting the financial and legal interests of Victorians
who, due to mental illness, injury or disability, are unable to do so
under VCAT orders
themselves. This service is provided by our Personal Financial Solutions
Division (PFS) on appointment by the Victorian Civil and Administrative
Tribunal (VCAT) under an administration order.

Executor Services

As nominated Executor of a Will or authorised by a nominated Executor
of an Estate, we administer estates professionally, impartially and with
empathy for the family and beneficiaries.

Attorneyship Services
(Enduring Powers of
Attorney (EPAs))

Looking after the financial and legal affairs of clients who have appointed
State Trustees to act for them through an EPA.

Estate Planning
Services

Helping clients plan for their future needs through the provision of holistic
financial, taxation and certain limited legal services (eg. preparation of
Wills, EPAs, financial plans and tax returns).

Trustee Services

Assisting clients to structure a Trust to suit their individual needs and
administering those Trusts to fulfil the original intentions of the Trust.

Investment Funds

A range of funds to help clients achieve their financial goals.

Charitable Trusts

Including State Trustees Australia Foundation, encouraging community
philanthropy by offering individuals and companies an easy and effective
way of donating money to various charities across Australia.

Government Trusts

Trustee for government Trusts where an important custodial role is
required. For example, Melbourne’s Federation Square and Australian
Synchrotron Beamlines Trusts.

Financial Planning,
Taxation and certain
limited Legal Services

Advice through qualified professionals to best suit individual needs and
objectives.

Probate Genealogy

Experts who specialise in locating next of kin to support the administration
of an Estate.

Residents’ Trust Fund

Funds administration services on behalf of the Department of Human
Services.

VCAT Exams

Examination of the annual financial accounts of private administrators
appointed by VCAT.

Funeral Fund

A capital guaranteed, traditional life insurance investment fund, issued
and administered by the Ancient Order of Foresters in Victoria Friendly
Society Limited (“Foresters Friendly Society”).
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Performance snapshot 2007/08
Products & Services
12 percent growth in revenue to $52.99 million
Community Service Obligation (CSO) Agreement – signed new contract with
Department of Human Services (DHS) with revenue of $14.681 million in 2007/08
Extensive review of sales and marketing plans to drive awareness and business growth
Seniors’ Festival 2007 campaign doubled the number of Will queries received in 2006
Maze campaign to raise the profile of Executor Services generated more than
2,500 leads
The value of the new Enduring Powers of Attorney we manage grew by 28.6 percent
Benchmarked our Client Value Index (CVI)

People
Employee turnover reduced by more than 30 percent compared to the previous year
Staff attendance improved markedly with a reduction in unplanned absences of
11 percent on 2006/07
154 new employees joined State Trustees during the year
Headcount increased in line with business growth by 14.4 percent to 531 (not including
casual staff)
Our first eight graduates completed their senior management studies with Deakin
University
Traineeship program expanded with nine trainees starting in January 2008
82 percent of our workforce completed our annual staff satisfaction survey, with
an 80.4 percent satisfaction rating
Management development program expanded to include team leader participation

Stakeholder relations
connected® 2008 art exhibition, expanded works and extensive newspaper coverage
across Victoria calling for submissions
Continued input to State and Federal legislative development particularly in the areas
of Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Terrorism Financing, Special Disability Trusts and
‘Older People and the Law’
Initiated long-term research project into financial abuse of elders with the aim of
providing greater support for older Victorians
Commissioned independent stakeholder research which identified high levels of
alignment and trust with key stakeholders
Began development of our Stakeholder Engagement Strategy
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Operational excellence
Commenced new product development process
Completed Phase 1 of Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Terrorism Financing (AML/CTF)
legislative requirements
Deployed fraud awareness training across the business
Implemented requirements of the Do Not Call Register legislation
Significantly progressed investment products review
Project Exspres – major service delivery changes implemented within Executor Services

Infrastructure
Implemented ‘Tickit’ Risk Management Software and divisional registers
Implemented Electronic Document Management System in Safe Custody and
completed an audit of all items in Safe Custody
Opened two new premises during the year: a retail site at Mornington and a
corporate office for 75 employees at 80 Collins Street
Expanded presence through Glen Waverley office
Conducted analysis and prepared the business case for a future upgrade to
State Trustees Corporate Financials and STRATIS Financials systems
Progressed accommodation strategy to meet future demands
Preparatory work for Technology Strategy
Increased monthly visits to www.statetrustees.com.au by 14 percent

Looking forward to...
Growing our client base through our holistic estate planning model
Expanding our investment product range and growing our funds under management
Increasing the profile of our Charitable Trust, State Trustees Australia Foundation
Continuing implementation of the Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Terrorism Financing
Act to enable compliance with Phase 2 components of the new legislation
Implementing new Technology Strategy
Continuing growth of Attorneyships with the aim of doubling our business capabilities
over the next three years
Ongoing improvement of stakeholder relationships and business networks
Ongoing improvements in service delivery to meet clients’ needs and expectations
Introducing workforce planning tools to help ensure the best staffing mix to meet
client needs
Development of our Trustee Services Operating and Service model
Completing our competency assessment program
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Organisational Profile
About us
State Trustees’ core purpose is to help people with their financial needs so they can make the most of their
opportunities. This is achieved through the provision of a comprehensive range of Will making, Trustee, Executor and
personal financial administration products and services.
This Annual Report covers both State Trustees Limited as an individual entity and the consolidated entity consisting of
State Trustees Limited and STL Financial Services Limited.

Accountable to our community
State Trustees, through its predecessors, was established nearly 70 years ago and has been a company
fully-owned by the State of Victoria for more than a decade.
State Trustees provides clients with ready access to an efficient complaints process through which to raise and resolve
any concerns or queries regarding service. Clients can access our Client Relations Manager via phone, online or in
writing. Every query is thoroughly investigated in a timely manner. Analysis of queries is undertaken to determine the
cause of concerns and appropriate action is taken to improve client processes. We also engage with the Office of the
Ombudsman of Victoria in resolving client queries.
The Board of Directors and management team determine State Trustees’ overall strategic direction, which is communicated
in our Strategic Plan 2006–2011. Priorities from this plan form the basis of the Corporate Plan, which sets annual
performance objectives and targets.
In 2005, State Trustees undertook a major corporate review, which resulted in the creation of the Strategic Plan 2006–2011.
Five key result areas were identified upon which the organisation needs to focus in order to achieve its business goals.
These are:
n Products and Services
n Our People
n Stakeholder Relationships
n Operational Excellence
n Infrastructure
In preparing the Corporate Plan and activities for the 2007/08 financial year, State Trustees undertook a review of the
information and operating environment analysis that informed the development of the strategic five-year plan. As there
were no significant issues or changes identified in this analysis, 2007/08 business activity focused on continuing to deliver
to the original plan.
Having completed the second year of the Strategic Plan, State Trustees is on track to achieve most of the targets and
strategies identified in the Plan.
Both the Strategic and Corporate Plans clearly demonstrate State Trustees’ determination to achieve long-term viability
and exceptional business planning and development.

Organisational chart
Board of Directors
Managing Director
Tony Fitzgerald
Personal
Financial
Solutions

Executor
+Trustee
Services

Estate
Planning

Corporate
Relations +
Marketing

Corporate
Strategy +
Innovation

Corporate
Operations

People +
Culture

David Johnstone

Ross McDonald

Doug Sumner

Alexandra Axford

Andrew Lloyde

Prue Willsford

John Brennan
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The continued commitment to State Trustees’ people
through capability development, additional personnel,
and empowerment to meet the challenges they face, has
enabled a strong performance against all key measures.

Corporate Leadership Team
L>R: Andrew Lloyde, David Johnstone, Ross McDonald, Tony Fitzgerald (Managing Director),
Prue Willsford, Alexandra Axford, John Brennan, Doug Sumner
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Reviewing and Measuring
our Performance
Profit and Revenue
Profit

Revenue
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We aim to consistently
provide a positive return
to our shareholder.
This year we achieved
a profit of $4.15 million
against a target of
$4.14 million.
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Our revenue stream for 2007/08
was $53 million, up from $47.3
million in 2006/07. We plan to
increase revenue streams for the
three-year period from $57 million
in 2008/09 to more than $65
million in 2010/11.

Full details of our financial performance results can be found in the Financial Statements section at the end of this report.

Generating new business
Our new business results for 2007/08 include:
n An increase of 28.6 percent in the value of the new Enduring Powers of Attorney (EPAs) we manage
n Total client growth in EPAs of 8.5 percent
n VCAT administration total client growth of 1.7 percent
n More than 1,000 new Deceased Estates received for administration
n Average Deceased Estate values increased from $151 thousand last year to $192 thousand this year
n More than 332 new Trusts established, worth more than $28 million
n External financial planning funds under advice increased by 57 percent to nearly $52 million

Measuring our performance
As well as financially, State Trustees measures its performance on other levels.
These are:
n client value
n shareholder value
n employee engagement
Each of these groups has specific expectations of State Trustees and the following indicators have been identified to
measure our performance relating to these expectations.

Client Value Index
In 2006/07 State Trustees developed a Client Value Index (CVI), to help us understand the aspects of service that clients
really value and determine how the business is delivering against those expectations. The first measurement (in 2007)
collected feedback from 751 non-statutory clients and this year feedback was gathered from more than 1,000 clients.
The CVI is a composite index that reflects our clients’ preference for State Trustees over our competitors, their willingness
to buy more of our services and their willingness to recommend us to others. The result is weighted heavily towards the
more challenging measure of advocacy as a means of driving high customer service standards. The CVI score achieved
in 2006/07 was 63 percent and in 2007/08 was 62 percent.
The feedback collected over the past two years helps us identify opportunities to improve future service delivery and set
improvement targets each year.

Business Value Index
State Trustees is developing a Business Value Index (BVI) to measure shareholder value. Business value is a ‘future state’
measure that will monitor the net present value of the projected future revenue from existing clients.
A number of our products and services create a bank of business value that is ‘locked’ away until some future event, such
as Deceased Estate administration and long-term management of Trusts. Being accountable for the increasing value of
such future business will enable us to continue to invest appropriate levels into the acquisition and retention of our clients
for the long-term.
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Employee engagement
For the fourth consecutive year, State Trustees undertook a staff satisfaction survey in November 2007, asking staff
their opinions on a range of matters across the business.
Results this year were extremely positive, with all drivers indicating positive movement on the previous year’s results.
As well as a continued strong staff participation rate (steady at 82 percent) overall staff satisfaction increased from
76.7 percent to 80.4 percent.
Results showed a consistent improvement in the relationship between managers and their direct reports and in staff
commitment to find the best solution for the client.
Staff indicated 100 percent awareness of company values and 98 percent agreement that they are relevant to their
work. Responses also showed staff have a high level of pride (90 percent) in the work the company does, and that
the type of work we do is an important factor (85 percent) in their job satisfaction.
Overall, the results were most pleasing, reflecting the extensive work undertaken to build an engaged and
empowered State Trustees workforce.

Key Performance Indicators
State Trustees has developed Key Performance Indicators in line with our Strategic Plan 2006–2011,
identified as five key strategic initiatives.
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Products
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The following outlines our activities this financial year
against our five key strategic initiatives.
Having a Trust means clients can give the Trustee a
degree of control over some of their assets, during the
clients’ lifetimes and after they die. Trusts can be set up
for reasons as diverse as funding a child’s education,
protecting the future for a loved one with a disability
after you die, protecting assets for future generations
or shielding assets from legal challenges.

Administration Services
under VCAT Orders
State Trustees’ Personal Financial Solutions Division
(PFS) has been appointed by the Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) under administration
orders, to manage and protect the financial and legal
interests of Victorians who, due to mental illness,
injury or disability, are unable to manage their affairs
themselves. During the year the number of Victorians
we supported through these services increased to nearly
9,000 people.

At State Trustees we specialise in Trusts that protect
vulnerable beneficiaries – children, the elderly at risk
of financial abuse, and people with disabilities. In
addition, we also manage Charitable Trusts.
This year we established 332 new Trusts, with assets
ranging from $5,000 to $1 million, and a total Trusts
assets under management value of $28 million. We
currently manage around 4,000 Trusts, valued at
$268 million in aggregate.

CSO Contract
This year we finalised negotiations with the Victorian
Department of Human Services for a further 5-year
Community Service Obligation (CSO) agreement between
State Trustees and the Minister for Community Services.
Under the CSO agreement, State Trustees provides a
range of services to vulnerable Victorians. The State has
an obligation to ensure these services are provided to all
Victorians, irrespective of whether or not the clients can
afford to obtain the services for themselves. We provide
these services on behalf of the State and the CSO agreement provides us with the authority and obligation to do
this. The CSO stipulates that these services are carried out
to a standard in line with community expectations, and
our processes and structure are designed to ensure these
are met.

State Trustees can tailor a Trust to suit clients’ needs.
This may be to maintain a portfolio of investments until
the Trust assets can be passed on to family members,
help with a disabled relative’s needs, manage a child’s
inheritance or simply to provide hassle-free financial
management of funds.
Minors’ Trusts are designed to protect and grow funds
for children until they reach the age of 18. Life-interest
Trusts usually involve major assets such as a house or
large share portfolio. With the increasing incidence of
second marriages, these Trusts are becoming more
popular as an effective way to pass assets to children,
while still allowing a spouse or partner to benefit from
them during their lifetime.

The CSO agreement also allows for the State to partially
fund certain services where the clients are unable to do so
themselves. The CSO agreement is State Trustees’ largest
contract and provided $14.681 million in revenue in
2007/08.

Our Charitable Trusts are varied, with purposes as diverse
as funding Aboriginal children’s education, supporting
living accommodation for impoverished journalists and
funding wildlife research.

Trustee Services

We have $50 million under management in our
Charitable Trusts, with the number of those administered
increasing from 196 to 208 during the year. The amount
of money paid to charities and organisations during the
year increased from $1.7 million to $2.2 million.

We have been custodian Trustee to a large number of
government and private sector organisations for almost
20 years. Our dedicated team of professionals is expert
in administering Trusts and maintaining ongoing relationships with clients. We manage a number of Trusts on
behalf of the government sector.
State Trustees’ personal Trust clients range in age,
cultural background and economic circumstances, which
is why we offer a highly personalised level of service to
suit clients’ specific needs.
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Protect the future of your child with a disability
At 76 Maureen was starting to worry about what would happen to her
intellectually disabled son, Jonathon, 36, when she died or if she became ill
and was unable to care for him.
Maureen had made generous provisions in her Will for Jonathon, but remained
concerned about her other children contesting her Will. Maureen met with
State Trustees who recommended that a Special Disability Trust be set up to
provide for Jonathon’s future care and accommodation. Seeing her Trust in action
and knowing that it was immune to estate challenges gave her reassurance that
Jonathon would have a good quality of life, even after she passed away.

Image: ‘Beeches Walk – Sherbrooke Forest’, by David Hannah
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John’s living legacy...
John Byrne spent most of his life working with and for young refugee people
and their families in Melbourne’s western suburbs. He was considered an expert
on the needs of migrants and refugees, consulting for government departments
and other agencies to establish numerous innovative community development
projects.
After John’s death his sister Annette Byrne-Phillips and a group of John’s
friends set up a Memorial for him, in memory of his tireless work for refugees.
The John Byrne Memorial Trust started with $10,000 and two years later has
grown to more than $24,000 thanks to fund-raising activities and donations.
John’s Memorial Trust provides assistance to disadvantaged refugees and
asylum seekers and their families, with a priority focus on young people
pursuing educational opportunities and pursuits within Australia.

Image: ‘The Grampians’, courtesy Southern Grampians Shire
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It is important to regularly update your Will, particularly
if relationships have changed, assets have been sold, new
assets acquired, or if there has been birth or death of
beneficiaries.

Deceased Estate Administration
Being an Executor and administering a Deceased Estate
is a complex and thankless task for most people. Initially,
it involves being responsible for obtaining probate of a
Will. An Executor’s duties also include arranging the
funeral, identifying and managing assets, working out
and paying debts, and distributing the estate’s proceeds
to beneficiaries named in the Will. In addition, an Executor
needs to manage claims brought by creditors or those who
believe they are entitled to a share (or greater share) of
the estate. As well as paying estate taxes, Executors need
to calculate and pay any tax owed by the deceased.

Financial Planning
A key part of estate planning is having a financial
plan. A good plan combines insurance, investment, tax
planning and, of course, retirement planning and wealth
preservation. Financial Planning has the goals of providing for financial independence in retirement and leaving
an estate for beneficiaries.

In essence, the Executor is the estate’s representative
for all legal purposes and has the ability to sue or be sued
on behalf of the estate. Being an estate’s Executor has
greater risk since changes to Victorian law broadened the
category of those who can challenge a Will. Under these
complex and time-consuming circumstances, it’s not
surprising that many people turn to State Trustees to
take over their Executorial duties.

State Trustees is a principal member of the Financial
Planning Association. Our planners undertake regular
and extensive training so that they can provide clients
with quality service and current advice.

State Trustees can be appointed as Executor when a Will
is being prepared. Alternatively, a family member or friend
who is named Executor in a Will can transfer the duties to
us if they don’t want to take on this responsibility.

This year our financial planners delivered an excellent
result in helping Victorians achieve their goals. They
increased their client base by 47 percent and revenue under
management by 126 percent. Overall, State Trustees
increased external financial planning funds under advice
by 57 percent to nearly $52 million.

After preparing a client’s Will and EPA, we can introduce
them to our financial planning experts who are able to
help them prepare for life’s financial contingencies, such
as buying a home or just preparing for the unexpected.

State Trustees is one of Victoria’s largest expert providers
of Executor Services. Last year we managed more than
1,500 Deceased Estates at any one time.

Tax Services

Estate Planning

Our Tax experts provide a broad range of tax services including preparing and lodging tax returns for individuals,
partnerships, Trusts, companies and self-managed superannuation funds. In addition we provide advice on a range
of GST and Capital Gains Tax related matters.

State Trustees approaches estate planning in a distinctive
way. Where many others start with a financial plan, our
approach to assuring a person’s financial security is to
make their Will and Enduring Power of Attorney (EPA) the
centrepiece of future plans. State Trustees’ estate planning
service provides clients with a solid plan comprising financial, legal and tax-efficient solutions directed at helping
clients grow, protect and ultimately share their wealth.

We help clients with year-end tax planning, tax effective
structures and investments. We can also help prepare
and lodge business and instalment activity statements.
In the 2008 financial period Taxation Advisory Services
completed 10,583 income taxation returns and
administrative reviews.

Having professional advice is critical to achieving the best
outcome.
During the year our Estate Planning team prepared more
than 2,000 Wills, more than 1,500 EPAs and lodged
around 7,500 tax returns. This makes us one of the
largest registered tax agents and one of the largest Will
preparers in Victoria.

Tax Performance

The right advice...
Mary decided it was time to get professional advice
on her tax affairs, so she contacted State Trustees
to make an appointment with one of our taxation
professionals.

Wills
A Will is a legal document by which an individual sets
out how they want their assets distributed when they die.
Assets could include a house, land, car, shares, insurance
policies, superannuation entitlements, money, jewellery or
any other goods a person has at the time of their death.

A single mum, Mary has a daughter in primary school,
a son in secondary school and receives Family Tax
Benefit Part A.
In addition to providing tax services requested, we
were able to help Mary plan for her next tax return.
Mary was advised that she may be eligible to an
offset of more than $1,000 for expenses associated
with Kate and Steven’s education.

Wills are a core service and a key activity for future business. This year we wrote 2,260 Wills of which 47 percent
were for new clients.
Without a Will, a person is deemed ‘intestate’, and under
these conditions their assets are distributed according to a
set legislative formula. But more importantly, it rarely reflects
the precise wishes of the individual who has worked a
lifetime to accumulate the assets being distributed.

With our advice, Mary is now keeping records of all
her education-related expenses so she can claim
eligible costs through the taxation system.
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Enduring Powers of Attorney
An important element of our business is writing and
managing Enduring Powers of Attorney (EPAs).

We also recognise that some need an EPA to be written
and activated immediately. We are able to help them
through our well-established relationships with people
such as hospital social workers, community case managers,
and those in centres such as nursing homes, to identify
problems and help them in their time of need.

With an EPA, a person voluntarily assigns authority over
their legal and financial affairs to another person or organisation. At State Trustees we prepare EPA documents on
our clients’ behalf. An EPA is a solution for a range of
situations including where someone experiences a significant life change or finds it too hard to manage their affairs,
through to someone who is working overseas and needs
their affairs in Australia managed while they’re away. We
can activate an EPA at any time a client requests it or
when they lose the ability to make their own decisions.

This year we wrote and immediately activated 119 new
EPAs and, at our clients’ request, activated another 50
that had previously been dormant. Overall, we have 667
active EPAs. Many of these clients have been with us for
more than 10 years.

Investment Structure Project

Our EPA business has a dual approach. When clients
contact State Trustees to prepare or update their Will
we offer them the option of preparing an EPA. If clients
choose this option we write their EPA which can then
remain dormant until they request that it be activated.

State Trustees holds a unique position of trust within the
financial services sector. Many clients are in constrained
or distressed personal circumstances, which attracts a
particularly strong duty of care in managing their affairs.
With this in mind, we began implementing a far reaching
restructure of our investment products and administration
this year.

Susan’s story

First, we have outsourced important elements of the
administration of our investment products to State Street
Australia Limited.

Susan was a widow and lived alone. She loved driving
her car, going out to dinner, going to the movies and
seeing her friends. When her husband, Malcolm,
passed away, Susan moved from the country to the
seaside to be closer to the beach and her family.
Malcolm managed all their finances when alive but
now Susan had to manage them. She didn’t quite
know where to start. There was the car registration
and insurance, as well as rent and bills to pay. A
Centrelink debt had accumulated, so she took out a
credit card to help. Then the credit card debt began
to grow so Susan took out a short-term loan. The
loan had to be paid while the rest of her bills were
still waiting payment.
Susan and Malcolm had been paying money into
a funeral fund for many years – it had matured
at $5,000. Not realising this, Susan had continued
to pay money into the fund.
It all just became too stressful, and Susan was
embarrassed by her lack of financial management
skills. Combined with the personal humiliation she
was feeling as a result of all the debt-collection
letters she was receiving, she was not coping and
her quality of life was non-existent. Susan knew she
needed help, and contacted State Trustees.
When Mary from State Trustees met with Susan,
she reassured her that together they could work to
get her situation under control and her quality of
life back. State Trustees negotiated with the bank
and finance company and put a payment plan in
place. Her car registration and insurance were
confirmed, and Centrelink was contacted. A budget
was developed with a built-in allowance so Susan
could do what she enjoyed doing. Priorities were
set and her finances were back on track.
Susan was able to stay independent, remain socially
active and be in control of her life once more.
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Solving a mystery...
State Street is a recognised leader in the field of outsourced
fund administration and brings significant resources and
scale advantages to the administration of our products.
Second, we appointed Russell Investments, one of the
world’s pre-eminent investment consulting firms, to advise
us on the most appropriate investment products and strategies, given the particular needs of our clients. Russell
Investments will also provide consulting services as we
restructure our range of investments into a series of
carefully selected multi-manager investment portfolios.

Marlene, 62, will never forget the day that State
Trustees contacted her to talk about her father.
Marlene had never known her father, Desmond, as
he’d left the family when she was an infant and her
mother refused to discuss him.
Marlene had always wanted to know what
happened to this mystery man and had spent five
years searching the internet and archives for any
trace of him, with no success. That all changed
when she received a call from Diana of State
Trustees’ Genealogical Services team.

The project has been significant in scope and is ongoing.
What it will do, when finished, is provide a suite of investment products and administration services that are well
suited to the many needs of our diverse client base.

Unbeknownst to Marlene, Desmond had lived less
than two hours away from her his entire life. He
had changed his name, joined the army, remarried
and divorced again. But, even though he had cut all
ties with his former family, State Trustees’ research
proved that Marlene was his sole surviving next-ofkin and the beneficiary of Desmond’s estate.

Genealogy
A critical aspect of executing some Wills and estates is
actually locating beneficiaries. State Trustees’ genealogy
team is the largest dedicated group of probate researchers
in Australia. Probate genealogy combines family history
(genealogy), legal, clerical and detective work. Our expert
genealogists conduct searches within Australia and
internationally.

Her father’s money has allowed Marlene, who
suffers from a life-threatening illness, to move to a
comfortable home and improve her standard of
living. More importantly, State Trustees’ research
provided closure for an emotional wound that had
lasted her entire life.

We can trace Executors and witnesses, locate missing heirs
or fund members, and identify and locate next of kin interstate and overseas. In fact, during the financial year we
located nearly 2,500 heirs who were identified in a Will as
being entitled to benefit from an estate.
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Stakeholder
relationships

Stakeholder
Relationships

State Trustees values its relationships with all stakeholders and has
undertaken a number of activities during the year aimed at strengthening
these important partnerships – both with the Victorian government and
the wider community.
During the year, we sought a better understanding of
our stakeholders in terms of their needs, their areas of
interest and perceptions of State Trustees by undertaking
independently conducted stakeholder research. A core
set of stakeholders were asked for their views on our
performance, their relationship with us and their interest
in collaborating with State Trustees on areas of shared
interest. The results show that State Trustees is well
regarded by stakeholders. The findings will provide
valuable input to our stakeholder engagement strategy.

across print radio and electronic media to raise awareness
of the benefits of utilising a professional Executor.
The second major campaign for the year was the
Victorian Seniors Festival, which State Trustees has been
proudly associated with for the past four years. This year
we promoted a new ‘legacy concept’, encouraging people
to update their Will and organise their legacy for future
generations. During the campaign the volume of acquisition business increased substantially, doubling the queries
received in July 2007 from July 2006. The campaign was
also supported by a seminar program delivered during
Victorian Seniors’ Festival in October 2007.

As part of better targeting our stakeholder communications this year, we produced a newsletter for Victorian
Members of Parliament (MPs) entitled ‘Your State Trustee’.
The newsletter included a mix of key contact information,
general interest stories and opportunities for MPs to get
involved in our activities. MPs were invited to publish the
information in their own electorate newsletters.

Another change to our marketing approach during the
year was the expansion of direct marketing campaigns
aimed at providing existing and potential customers more
information about the products and services State Trustees
offers. As part of this program, we undertook campaigns
to raise awareness of our financial planning and taxation
services.

A core factor of our community engagement in 2007/08
was the development of important partnerships with
two local councils: the City of Monash and Mornington
Peninsula Shire. Both organisations operate in communities with high populations of residents aged over 65 years,
and share a common goal of helping residents make a
greater connection with their community. These partnerships have enabled the purchase of computer equipment
and audio books to improve accessibility at Monash
libraries and the expansion of the Mornington Dial-a-Bus
service which provides much-needed transport for isolated
older residents.

We continue to undertake initiatives to improve our relationships with our clients, including producing a customer
newsletter called Status. The impact has been positive with
results indicating that Status encouraged Victorians to
take steps to better manage their personal affairs. The
campaign generated a record number of outbound Will
appointments (278 against a target of 180) as well as an
increase in the number of Enduring Power of Attorney
(EPA) and Financial Planning queries.
While our marketing activities for the year remained product
specific, they raised awareness in our markets of the many
ways State Trustees can help clients achieve their full
potential. Over the coming year we will consolidate this
increased market presence and build a holistic marketing
approach that goes further to support our brand as a means
of increasing the success of our product advertising. This
will include an overarching corporate positioning and
advertising plan.

Sponsorship
State Trustees’ sponsorship strategy continues to focus on
those in the community with whom we interact the most.
Key sponsorship events this financial year included the
Seniors Festival, the Vic Deaf exhibit at the International
Flower and Garden Show, as well as building our newly
developed relationship within the Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual
and Transgender community, through activities like the
Midsumma Festival.

Media
Media coverage of State Trustees during the year was
positive with a steady increase in articles appearing in the
second half of the year. State Trustees’ Grants Program
received coverage in local, suburban and regional newspapers, as did the connected® 2008 exhibition. Other
media coverage across Victoria included a 40 minute
talk-back segment on ABC’s Nightlife program, addressing
the importance of making a Will.

Marketing
Marketing over the past 12 months has embraced a
new approach, supporting our broader client-generation
businesses and their product offerings. This is aimed at
further driving more strategic and targeted activity.
Two major campaigns during the year reflected this. For
the first time an Executor Services campaign was launched
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Supporting our Community
State Trustees is an active supporter of our clients and their communities.
To achieve this we support many community groups, charities and organisations, events and festivals through active
participation, donations or sponsorships. Our strong focus on community involvement is reflected in the initiatives we
have in place. These initiatives include: n the State Trustees Grants Program n the connected® 2008 art exhibition
n State Trustees Australia Foundation n Private Charitable Trusts.

Grants Program
State Trustees fully funds the State Trustees Grants Program as an extension of our already strong community support.
Since its launch in 2003 (as the Community Partnership Program), grants have made a difference in the ability of
community organisations to support their members.
State Trustees’ team members are involved in the process through the grant selection panel.
Grants distributed through the State Trustees Grants Program range in value from $500 to $5,000 and must be used to
fund projects that will specifically contribute improvements to the quality of life of Victorians who are elderly or have a
disability. Approximately $40,000 in grants was distributed during the 2007/08 financial year.
This year’s grants included funds for:
n new horse fences for Warracknabeal’s Woodbine Centre to enable
its Riding for the Disabled program to continue after the equine flu virus
n new bowls for the Epping Pensioners’ Association
n a new shed for the gentlemen at Broadmeadow’s McLellan House
n music therapy for residents at the Weighbridge Psychogeriatric Nursing Home
n lifting equipment for residents at the Alkira complex in Box Hill
In addition, funds were also distributed to three Victorian groups supporting young people with a disability, as part of the
Elizabeth Kucera Memorial (a sub-fund of State Trustees Australia Foundation). Elizabeth Kucera was Managing Director
of State Trustees from 2001 to 2003 when she passed away due to sudden illness. The memorial was created to maintain
the legacy of her commitment to helping make a real and long-term difference to organisations and individuals in need
of support.
Lilydale-based Care Connect Limited, the Camberwell-based Epilepsy Foundation of Victoria and Ballarat-based
organisation BEST Futures each received funding to help young people with a disability enjoy an improved quality of life.
Photo by Travis McCue© originally published in Whittlesea Leader, 4 June 2008 (supplied courtesy of Newspix)
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David Johnstone, General Manager
Personal Financial Solutions, shows his
bowls skills to Grants Program recipients
Epping Pensioners Association

Glen Sinclair with his 2008 work
‘The Golden Red Dragon’
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®

connected 2008
Since the end of the financial year we have hosted the
connected® 2008 art exhibition which ran from 22 July to
3 August. For the first time, the event was held in the Victorian
arts precinct, in the Black Box Theatre, and developed with
Arts Access, Victoria’s peak disability arts group.
In its sixth year, the key objective of connected® 2008 was to
connect artists who have a disability or experience of mental illness
with their community.
In an effort to increase the opportunities for ‘connection’, the
event was open to new and emerging artists, expanded to include
all art media, and entrants were invited from across Victoria.
The event included an exhibit by residents in two supported
residential services (SRS) facilities and a community forum was
hosted to discuss what can be done to help improve the quality
of life for residents in SRSs.
Finally, connected® 2008 celebrated music as art, with free
public concerts by musicians with a disability or experience of
mental illness.
An artwork by Williamstown resident Robert Weir was announced
by Victorian Treasurer John Lenders as the winner of connected®
2008. Mr Weir’s work, titled ‘Cool Gay Gods’, was selected from
among 100 exhibits on display.
An audio visual display by Sunshine resident Luke Toohey, entitled
‘Definition’ was awarded second place, while an untitled painting
by Mt Waverley resident Rosa Iorio took third place.

‘Cool Gay Gods’, Robert Weir, 2008
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This year has seen
a major focus on
employee wellbeing
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Our People

Our People

In order to achieve the challenging vision of being ‘known for outstanding
service to our clients’, State Trustees’ people are required to be focused,
well trained and demonstrate high levels of emotional intelligence.
The focus of our People and Culture program in
2007/08 has been to increase the learning opportunities
for State Trustees’ people. The program also supports
them in different ways so they can provide the best
possible outcomes for our clients.

Staff improvement opportunities
During the year:
n We completed the second year of our management
development program in partnership with Deakin
University, with eight managers graduating in June 2008.

Like all corporate businesses competing for staff in the
financial services sector, State Trustees has battled high
levels of staff turnover in recent years. Pleasingly, our People
and Culture program has begun to pay real dividends in
2007/08 with a major decrease in staff attrition (down 30
percent), a higher attendance rate (unplanned absences
down 11 percent) and an increase in the number of people
supporting our clients (headcount up by 14 percent).
Competency assessments. We launched a competency
assessment program in which every role in the company
was broken down into its core technical and corporate
competencies. The incumbent was assessed against
those competencies to understand their full training
needs and formulate a learning and development plan.

n

More people. By year’s end, we employed 67 more
people than we did at the start of the year. The number
of total employees (not including casuals) now stands
at 531.

n

Wellbeing programs. This year has seen a major focus
on employee wellbeing through activities on multiple
levels. Programs included yoga and pilates classes,
Weight Watchers and high intensity commando style
training for those seeking to be super fit. We have
also facilitated the appointment of workplace contact
officers to help staff who are experiencing workplace
difficulties. Health checks and vaccinations are other
examples of wellbeing initiatives.

Nine young people were provided with their first full
time job via a traineeship, co-ordinated in conjunction
with RMIT.

n

All new employees completed State Trustees’ online
self-paced Induction, Compliance and Occupational
Health and Safety (OH&S) training modules.

In total, 120 training courses are currently offered to staff
for enrolment via our learning and development portal.

Important aspects of our 2007/08 program included:
n

n

As part of their induction all new employees are made
aware of the following policies:
n Code of Conduct
n Privacy Policy
n Email and Internet Usage Protocol
n Leave and Attendance Policy
n Whistleblowers Act
n Bullying and Harassment Policy
n Grievance Procedures
n Equal Opportunities Policy
n OH&S Policy

Our approach to diversity
Our people are acutely aware of the impact of disadvantage in the lives of our clients and our people practices
support equality and fairness.
The workforce comprises an extraordinary mix of cultures
and ethnicities, as well as staff with a range of disabilities.
We have several vision-impaired employees (including two
guide dogs as part of the team), hearing-impaired and
physically disabled staff. We also try to make employment
opportunities available for people with forms of intellectual
disability.

Of the 531 people employed at State Trustees, 62.3
percent are women and 10 percent are part-time staff.
At year-end, we had 25 employees on maternity leave,
with most indicating their intention to return to work
on a part-time basis in the 2008/09 year. The full-time
equivalent employee figures were 485 compared to
429.3 for the previous year. During the past 12 months
we welcomed 154 new employees, as a result of continuing
growth and replacement of those who moved on, mostly
to other roles in the financial services sector.

Women are strongly represented in all areas of State
Trustees with 52 percent of the key leadership roles held
by women.
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Operational
Excellence
Serving our clients

Operational
Excellence

Anti-Money
Laundering and
Counter Terrorism
Financing Act 2006

State Trustees continued to enhance client relationship
management processes to further improve our responsiveness to client enquiries in the VCAT Administration Orders
side of our business. This has been achieved by improving
staff retention in this high demand, high client-contact
area through reward and recognition, increased training
and job sharing.

Australia is a signatory to the various international conventions and United Nations resolutions directed at combatting
money laundering and terrorism financing activities. The
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter Terrorism Financing
Act 2006 (AML/CTF Act) is a significant initiative by the
Federal Government in fulfilling these international
obligations.

The continued reliance on telephone contact confirms
the importance of the role our client services staff play
in providing very high levels of service to our clients and
stakeholders.
Our ongoing challenge is to ensure we can continue to
provide these services to the necessary standards in the
face of changing client needs. Over the past few years,
for instance, we have seen a trend for an increasing
proportion of clients with high-level needs who require
more consultant time to manage their affairs.

The AML/CTF Act requires businesses in Australia that
provide certain designated services to have an AML/CTF
compliance program in place from December 2007.
State Trustees established a project team to implement the
governance framework, policy, processes and procedures
to comply with the applicable requirements of the Act,
including formal adoption by the Board of State Trustees’
AML/CTF compliance program.

After three years of steady rises, the number of clients
contacting the Personal Financial Solutions contact centre (PFS) this year has plateaued, with just one percent
increase on previous years. This leveling reflects the
robustness of the manageable caseloads project – which
ensures that clients with higher needs receive the higher
level of support required.

Records
Management

With an average tally of 907 calls per day, 227,702 calls
were received by the Personal Financial Solutions contact
centre during the 2007/08 year.

A Records Management project was initiated during
the year to improve the way our records are managed
and to align with the Victorian Attorney General’s audit
recommendations on best practice record keeping.

Project Exspres

This project will run over three years from August 2008
to June 2011. Over this period the project will deliver:
n corporate policies, procedures and standards
for Records Management
n a business classification system (for creating and
managing client and business records both paper
and electronic)
n retention and disposal schedules for managing
client and business records
n a fully integrated electronic document records
management system

Project Exspres focuses on improving the client
experience and related processes in Executor Services’
administration service.
The project operated in three phases over 22 months
from October 2006 to June 2008. Some key changes
introduced include:
n New Guiding Principles for estate administration
n A ‘Quick Wins’ program to achieve early benefits
n Appointment of three estate contact officers, a new
role created to enable increased direct contact with
beneficiaries
n Some 95 key changes, embedded into processes
and delivered through simulated process training

These deliverables will improve State Trustees’
performance on records management by having a
consistent approach across the company with better
information control.

Executor Services continues to develop and implement
detailed forms/letters and process measures. Business process owners have been appointed to ensure improvements
are ongoing. It is expected the rollout of the detailed new
processes will provide far reaching benefits for our clients.
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This year the focus has
been to increase the
learning opportunities
for our people
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Infrastructure

Infrastructure

‘Oracle’ upgrade preparation

Environmentally responsible

During the year this project involved preparation and
research into the upgrading of the State Trustees Asset
and Trust Information System (STRATIS) to the latest
version of ‘Oracle’ Financials. This enables us to have a
core financial system than can continue to be supported
by the vendor.

As part of our environmental responsibility, we have reviewed our activities to minimise our impact on the environment.
We are undertaking a number of activities to reduce our
environmental footprint, including participation in the
State Government’s Environmental Management System
(EMS), a program used to identify, manage and reduce
an organisation’s impact on the environment.

Recommendations from the research indicated the need
to upgrade the existing ‘Oracle’ Forms version of STRATIS
to a mode compatible with a future upgrade. The work
will be carried out over the 2008/09 financial year.

This year we also participated in Earth Hour – a global
climate change initiative that calls on individuals and
businesses around the world to turn off their lights
for one hour.

Website

We have also undertaken active monitoring of the
environmental performance of all buildings. All offices
participate in internal waste minimisation programs that
have been developed to help staff reduce, re-use and
recycle, and we are working to reduce our energy and
water consumption.

State Trustees’ website is a vital communications tool enabling us to reach a large number of clients and business
networks, as well as meet the growing need for on-demand
information access.
While designed for ease of consumer navigation and
access to information about our services, we are working
to ensure the website meets the changing demands of the
community in this increasingly tech-savvy information age.

In the preparation of this report, we have considered
our environmental responsibilities. This report is printed
on 50 percent recycled fibre and 50 percent Forest
Stewardship Council certified virgin fibre, which is elemental chlorine free and is produced under ISO 14001
accredited conditions.

Work done to further improve online content and improve
navigation will be launched early in 2008/09.
In the 2007/08 period the site received a total of 85,267
visits. The average number of site visits per month exceeded 7,000, up 14.52 percent on last year’s results, with
67 percent of visits to the site in the past financial year
representing first-time visitors.

Environmental management will continue to be a key
part of State Trustees’ operations as we work to minimise
the impact of our business on the natural environment
and help conserve Victoria’s unique biodiversity for
generations to come.

In all, during the year, 286,666 pages were viewed for
an average time of 2.44 minutes each. This is an increase
on last year’s results with 243,438 pages viewed for an
average time of 2.32 minutes.
Website Traffic statistics:
n 26.89 percent of visitors came directly to the site
n 20.63 percent of visitors were referred by another site
n 52.46 percent of visitors came from search engines

Offices – Glen Waverley
and Mornington
During the year State Trustees changed the premises
of our Glen Waverley office, to suite 22, 2nd floor,
40 Montclair Avenue.
We also increased our presence in Mornington and the
surrounding areas in May 2008, when the opening hours
of State Trustees’ Mornington office were expanded to
five days a week, at Unit 3–4, 307 Main Street.

State Trustees’ Mornington office expanded
office hours in May this year.
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Rockband ‘Rudely Interrupted’ performed at connected® 2008,
widening the artistic scope of the exhibition by including music.
L>R from back: Josh Hogan, Marcus Stone, Connie Kirkpatrick
front: Sam Beke, Rohan Brooks
absent: Rory Burnside
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This financial statement covers both State Trustees Limited as an
individual entity and the consolidated entity consisting of State Trustees
Limited and STL Financial Services Limited.
State Trustees Limited is a State-owned enterprise. Its registered office
and principal place of business is:
State Trustees Limited, 168 Exhibition Street, Melbourne Vic. 3000
n

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity’s operations
and its principal activities is included in the Directors’ Report on pages
32–35, which is not part of this financial statement.
The financial statement was authorised for issue by the Directors on
25 August 2008.
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Directors’ Report
State Trustees Limited’s Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting
the company and economic entity’s financial statements at 30 June 2008.

1. Board of Directors_

Daryl F Hawkey FFin

Directors of State Trustees Limited and STL Financial Services
Limited in office during the financial year, and until the date of
this report, are:

Appointed: 1 July 2002.

John H M Marcard BCom, FCA, CPA, FAICD

Committees: Chairman of the State
Trustees Limited Investment Committee
and Member of the Remuneration and
Compliance Committees.

Appointed: 1 July 2002, and became
Chairman of the Board of Directors from
30 June 2004.

Experience: Daryl is a principal of
Cameron Ralph Pty Ltd, a privately held
business, founded in August 2002, which aims to assist boards
to improve their performance. He is a Director of UCA Funds
Management, a member of the Compliance Committee and a
member of the Advisory Board of Morse Consulting Pty Ltd.
He is also an external member of the Compliance Committees
of Blackrock Funds Management (Australia) Limited, Spark
Infrastructures RE Limited and Principal Global investors
(Australia Limited).

Committees: Chair of the State Trustees
Limited Remuneration Committee, and
Member of the Compliance, Audit, and
Investment Committees.
Experience: John is a Chartered Accountant, whose career
embraces a wide variety of experience, predominantly in audit.
A partner at Pannell Kerr Forster (now PKF) from 1971–2001,
he’s currently a consultant to the firm.

Daryl has spent 38 years in the banking and fund management
industries, retiring in November 2002 after 13 years as an
Executive director of Sagitta Wealth Management Limited
(formerly Rothschild Australia Asset Management Limited). He
was a member of the Executive Committee and of the Board
Compliance and Audit Committees. As head of Legal and
Compliance, he also had responsibility for industry, regulatory
and government relations, and the Melbourne office.

John has been a director of the Royal Automobile Club of
Victoria (RACV) since 1982. He was also a director of the
Australian Automobile Association (AAA) from 1992–98.

Anthony G Fitzgerald BBus, CPA, MAICD

Daryl was also a director of the Investment and Financial
Services Association (IFSA) from its inception in 1998 until
2002, and before 1998, of the Investment Funds Association,
a predecessor of IFSA. He was Chairman of IFSA’s Regulatory
Affairs Board Committee and a director of the Financial Industry
Complaints Service Limited (1999-2002).

Appointed: 25 September 2003.
Committees: Member of State Trustees
Australia Foundation, Compliance,
Investment and Remuneration
Committees.
Experience: Over the last 28 years,
Anthony Fitzgerald has gained extensive
financial services experience from a number of senior roles in the
National Australia Bank Group, both in Australia and overseas.
These include Strategy Adviser, Global Business Financial Services,
and Head of Business Marketing, and Business Financial Services
Australia. His experience in the NAB group covered the areas of
strategy, marketing, organisational planning, credit analysis,
sales, and customer and outlet management.

Dr Irene Irvine PhD Chem, BSc (Hons), DipEd,
GradDip (Admin), FRACI, AICD, AFAIM
Appointed: 1 July 2004.
Committees: Chair of State Trustees
Limited Compliance Committee and
Member of the Remuneration Committee.

Anthony joined State Trustees in 2002 as General Manager
Estate Planning Solutions looking after estate management, wills,
attorneyships, and trusts and has been Managing Director since
September 2003.

Experience: Irene is the Pro ViceChancellor (Development) at Deakin
University. She has held a range of key
positions in business development and strategic marketing in
the public, private and not-for-profit sectors, including disability
services. She is currently Deputy Chairman of the Zoological
Parks and Gardens Board.

Anthony holds a Bachelor of Business Accounting from the
Queensland University of Technology, is a CPA, and is currently
National President of the Trustee Companies Association.

Irene is a graduate of Leadership Victoria (formerly Williamson
Community Leadership Program) and devotes much of her time
to not-for-profit or charity activities.

Linda G Berry BA, LLB (Hons)
Appointed: 1 July 2004.
Committees: Member of the
State Trustees Limited Compliance
and Audit Committees.
Experience: Linda has been a partner in
the legal firm of Minter Ellison for the past
14 years and has practiced predominantly
in the corporate finance sector for more than 20 years.
In addition, Linda is a director of the Royal Children’s Hospital
and is a former Director of the Women's and Children's Health
Care Network, the Royal Children's Hospital Research Institute
and the CRC for Discovery of Genes for Common Human
Diseases.
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John R E Price LLB

Patrick M Burroughs BSSc (Hons), FCA, FAICD, SA Fin
Appointed: 1 November 2005.

Appointed: 1 May 2008

Committees: Chair of State Trustees
Australia Foundation, Member of the
State Trustees Limited Audit and
Investment Committees.

Committees: Chairman of the State
Trustees Limited Audit Committee and
Member of the Remuneration Committee.
Experience: Patrick is a Chartered
Accountant with extensive experience
in a range of industries including the
financial services, building and construction, manufacturing
and government (health, treasury and finance) sectors.

Experience: A Lawyer, John was a partner
with Maurice Blackburn Cashman from
1984 and headed up their industrial personal injuries practice
until retiring from the firm in 2004. An Accredited Personal
Injuries specialist, John practiced in personal injuries litigation for
over 27 years and was a member of the Accident Compensation
Committee of the Law Institute, Australian Lawyer Alliance, VWA
Legal Liaison Committee, and numerous Victorian Government
working parties and advisory groups.

Patrick is currently Chairman of PFS Nominees Pty Ltd and a
director of MLC Nominees Pty Ltd, both corporate trustees of
large public offer superannuation funds administered by MLC
Ltd, a subsidiary of National Australia Bank Ltd. He is also a
director of Pacifica Group Ltd, the Royal Children's Hospital,
The Companies Auditors and Liquidators Disciplinary Board
(CALDB) and Australia’s Open Garden Scheme.

John has been with the Financial Ombudsman Service (formerly
Insurance Ombudsman Service) as Referee since 2004 and is
also the alternate Panel Chairman and Adjudicator. In addition,
John is Chair of the Appeals Board for Cricket Victoria.

In the past Patrick has held a number of positions including
Prudential Supervisor for the State of Victoria, Chief Financial
Officer of St Vincents Health, Independent Director of Women’s
and Children’s Health Service and 27 years with KPMG where he
was a Senior Partner and head of its Financial Services Practice.

Julie A Elliott MBA (Exec), BEc, FCA, MAICD, SA Fin
Appointed: 5 March 2008

Alice J M Williams BCom, FCPA, FAICD, CFA

Committees: Member of the State Trustees
Limited Investment and Audit Committees.

Resigned: 31 August 2007

Experience: Julie is a Chartered Accountant
and has a wealth of experience in both
Global Corporations and high-profile
public sector boards spanning more than
20 years. Julie is currently National Manager, Business Advice for
the BT Financial Group.

Committees: Chair of the Audit
Committee, Chair of State Trustees
Australia Foundation Advisory
Committee, and Member of the
Investment and Remuneration
Committees.

Julie has held a range of senior and professional positions,
including Strategic Consulting for Firstwater, Global Head of
Sales and Service, Payments, National Australia Bank, General
Manager, Strategy, Marketing and Product Development with
MLC Corporate Solutions and Senior Audit Manager with KPMG.

Experience: Alice holds several other government and
corporate board positions. She is director of Airservices Australia,
Guild Insurance & Financial Services Holdings Limited, V/Line
Passenger Corporation and Telstra Sale Company Limited. She
is a Commissioner for the Victorian Competition and Efficiency
Commission, and Council Member of the Cancer Council of
Victoria. Her previous directorships include the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, and Western Health, including
Chair of its Finance and the Audit Committee.

Julie was on the Board of Metropolitan Fire and Emergency
Services Board from 2001 to 2007 and President and Chair from
2005 to 2007, She also chaired the Audit Committee. During her
time as Chair she played a leading role in recruitment of a new
CEO and driving a cultural change agenda which transformed
the organisation.

Alice consults to a range of government and corporate
clients, undertaking corporate finance and strategy projects and
government regulatory policy development. She has extensive
experience in investment management, corporate advisory, and
equity fund-raising through roles as director of NM Rothschild
and Sons (Australia) Ltd, director of Strategy and Planning for
Ansett Australia Airlines, Vice President at JP Morgan Investment
Management Australia Limited, and roles with Elders Finance
Group, Hong Kong Bank of Australia, and Citibank NA
(London).

Julie is a graduate of Leadership Victoria (formerly Williamson
Community Leadership program).
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2. Directors’ meetings_
The number of meetings of the Board of Directors and Board Committees during the year, and
attendance by directors at those meetings, are listed below.

Director

Board
Meeting
A
H

Audit
Committee(a)
A
H

Compliance
Committee(b)
A
H

Investment
Committee(c)
A
H

Remuneration
Committee(d)
A
H

John Marcard

11

11

4

4

4

4

4

4

2

2

Tony Fitzgerald

11

11

4(e),(f)

4(e),(f)

5

5

4

4

2

2

Linda Berry

10

10

4

4

5

5

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

Patrick Burroughs(g) 2

2

1

1

(f)

(f)

(f)

(f)

1

1

Julie Elliott(h)

4(i)

3(i)

1

1

(f)

(f)

1

1

(f)

(f)

Daryl Hawkey

10

10

(f)

(f)

3

4

4

4

1

1

Dr Irene Irvine

11

11

(f)

(f)

5

5

(f)

(f)

2

2

4

(f)

(f)

4

4

(f)

(f)

1

(f)

(f)

1

1

1

1

John Price

11
(k)

Alice Williams

11

2

4

2

1

(a) Patrick Burroughs is Chair of the Audit Committee. John Marcard was
Acting Chair of the Audit Committee from 22 October 2007 to 23 June 2008.
(b) Irene Irvine is Chair of the Compliance Committee.
(c) Daryl Hawkey is Chair of the Investment Committee.
(d) John Marcard is Chair of the Remuneration Committee.
(e) Tony Fitzgerald attends the Audit Committee meetings by invitation.
(f) Director is not a member of this Committee.
(g) Patrick Burroughs was appointed as a director effective 1 May 2008.
(h) Julie Elliott was appointed as a director effective 5 March 2008.
(i) Director attended one meeting by invitation prior to becoming a director.
(k) Alice Williams resigned as director effective 31 August 2007.

A Number of meetings attended.
H Number of meetings held
during the time the director
held office exclusive of leave
of absence.

Our financial results were in line with budget for the fifth
consecutive year. We achieved an operating result after tax of
$3,113,000 (2007: $2,521,000). Our revenue increased by 12.0%
(2007: 5.6%) to $52,987,000. In addition, the measures set out
in the Strategic Plan 2006–2011 are being tracked, and we are
in line with or ahead of most key measures.

3. Principal activities_
State Trustees’ principal activities were as trustee, executor,
administrator, attorney, and agent and provider of other fiduciary
and agency services.

In addition to growth in core business revenues, our successful
financial result was due to a number of other factors including
a growth in the number of clients, a change in the client mix
(economic and complexity) and a re-negotiated Community
Services Agreement. We have not been immune to the sell-off in
investment markets with a resulting reduction in our investment
returns over this reporting period. We anticipate this volatility to
continue into the next financial year. We have no direct exposure
to “sub-prime” investments.

4. Dividend_
The shareholder approved the 2007 total dividend of
$2,269,000 referred to in the Directors’ Report (dated
27 August 2007). In keeping with their declared policy of
distributing 90% of operating profit after tax to the shareholder,
the directors recommend a total dividend of $2,802,000 for
the 2007-08 financial year.

Interim dividend

2008
$000

2007
$000

1,609

1,598

Final dividend *

1,193

671

Total dividends for the year

2,802

2,269

We have invested in our future growth by trialling a number of
marketing campaigns and investing in client service improvement
initiatives, including expanding our branch network. We will
continue to target increased client satisfaction, building on our
brand recognition and penetration, and growing our client base
and referral networks – never losing sight of our significant
ongoing compliance and risk management obligations. While
maintaining our focus on cost control, significant investment in
technology is required to make a real difference to our ongoing
operational efficiencies.

* The final 2008 dividend is not payable until approved by the
shareholder. Accordingly, we have not made a provision for the
dividend in the current accounts.

Our focus for the coming year is to continue building a
sustainable business while delivering on our financial goals.

5. Review of operations_
The current reporting period saw a continuation of our journey
towards the vision that was set out in the Strategic Plan 2006–2011.
We consolidated the foundation work carried out last year and
have made good progress in building our business development
capabilities. As a result, a pleasing aspect of this year's financial
results is that it was delivered on the back of solid revenue
growth in our core products.

6. Significant changes in the state of affairs_
There were no significant changes in the company’s state of
affairs other than those referred to in the financial statements or
attached notes.

7. Matters subsequent to the_
end of the financial year_

Over the year we have continued to research and seek understanding of what aspects of our business our clients actively value,
and to develop initiatives aimed at improving our performance in
these areas.

Other than the current market volatility, no circumstance has
arisen that has affected or may significantly affect the company’s
operations since 30 June 2008.

34

8. Likely developments and future results_

11. Auditors’ independence declaration_

The directors advise that there are no likely developments in the
company’s operations or expected results in future financial years
to report.

A copy of the auditors’ independence declaration, as required
under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, is set out on
this page.

9. Insurance_

12. Rounding amounts_

During the financial year, State Trustees Limited paid a premium
under a contract insuring specified officers against liability incurred
in their capacity of working on the company’s behalf. Those
officers are the Board directors named above, the Company
Secretary, Gayle Hill, and other employees whose functions
include managing strategic development and providing financial
advice and human resources to the company and its related
bodies corporate.

State Trustees is classified under the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission Class Order 98/0100. In accordance
with this class order, dollar amounts in the financial statements
and the Directors’ Report have been rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars unless specifically stated to be otherwise.
This report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors.

We cannot disclose the nature of the liability and premium
due to the insurance contract confidentiality clause. We have not
provided insurance for the company’s or related body’s corporate
auditor.

John HM Marcard Chairman of Directors

10. Reserve fund_
State Trustees has complied with the provisions of the Trustee
Companies Act 1984 that requires a reserve fund to be created
and set aside by authorised trustee companies. These are
reflected in the financial statements at Note 10.

Anthony G Fitzgerald Managing Director
Melbourne, 25 August 2008

Victorian
Government
Risk Management
Framework
Attestation

Auditors-General’s
Independence
declaration

In the context of the Victorian Government Risk Management
Framework and State Trustees’ observance of the framework,
I, John Heinrich Matthias Marcard certify that State Trustees
Limited has risk management processes in place consistent
with the Australian/New Zealand Risk Management Standard
(or equivalent designated standard) and an internal control
system is in place that is intended to enable the executive to
understand, manage and satisfactorily control material risk
exposures. The Board verifies this assurance and the that risk
profile of State Trustees Limited has been critically reviewed
within the last 12 months.

To the Directors of State Trustees Limited
The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the
Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General, an independent
officer of parliament, is not subject to direction by any person
about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to
be exercised.
Under the Audit Act 1994, the Auditor-General is the auditor
of each public authority and for the purposes of conducting an
audit has access to all documents and property, and may report
any matters which the Auditor-General considers appropriate.

John HM Marcard Chairman of Directors

Independence Declaration
As auditor for State Trustees Limited for the year ended
30 June 2008, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, there have been:
a no contraventions of auditor independence requirements
of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit;
b no contraventions of any applicable code of professional
conduct in relation to the audit.

DDR Pearson Auditor-General
Melbourne, 26 August 2008
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Corporate Governance Statement
State Trustees is committed to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of corporate governance.
Our main governance practices are consistent with the Victorian Government’s ‘Good practice guide on
governance for Victorian public sector entities’. For ease of reporting, we have addressed our governance
practices through five key corporate public sector governance principles. Unless otherwise stated, these
practices have been in place for the full financial year.
This corporate governance statement sets out information about our enabling legislation.

Corporate Structure_

1. Accountability_
1.1 Corporate structure

State of Victoria

State Trustees, under its enabling legislation of the State Trustees
(State Owned Company) Act 1994 (Vic), reports to the Government of Victoria, and comes under the Department of Treasury
and Finance. The State of Victoria is our sole shareholder. We
have a Board of Directors, whose members are appointed by
the Victorian Treasurer on behalf of the State of Victoria.

(Shareholder)
Overseen by the Department
of Treasury + Finance

1.2 Communication with shareholder
Through the Board of Directors, State Trustees reports to
the Treasurer as the State of Victoria’s representative. This
communication includes:
n quarterly reporting on financial performance, any significant
variations from the corporate plan, business risks, and general
business issues,
n responding to questions arising from the quarterly reporting
either as ad hoc reports or in direct meetings with the
Treasurer or his representatives,
n financial statements, directors’ reports, and the auditor’s
reports as required by the Corporations Act 2001 (C’wealth),
n any reports requested by the Auditor General or Ombudsman,
and
n responses to questions from Members of Parliament.

State Trustees Limited

Board of Directors

Managing Director

1.3 Executive reporting lines
Managing Director, Tony Fitzgerald, leads State Trustees. He
has seven general managers as direct reports. This group, known
as the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) meets formally each
fortnight, but meets informally more often as required.

1.4 Performance to plan

Corporate Leadership Team

Strategic performance
State Trustees based its financial year operations on its
‘Strategic Plan 2006–2011’.
We centre our key corporate performance indicators on two
components: customer value and shareholder value. We
achieved our agreed performance measures and targets for
the 2007–08 financial year.

Senior Management Group

Two indices drive our service offerings: the Client Value Index (CVI)
and the Business Value Index. We constructed and presented the
latter concept to the executive during the previous reporting year,
and advanced it during the next year.
We developed the CVI during the 2006/07 year and in 2007/08
collected data from 1,035 non-statutory clients. We selected
these survey respondents to reflect the proportion of clients who
have acquired various products and services from us over the
past few years.
We will use our respondents’ feedback about their experience
with the organisation to improve future service delivery.

Financial performance
State Trustees’ budgeted profit before tax for the financial year
was $3.48 million. The financial year’s actual performance was
$4.15 million.
We budgeted for a $52.4 million financial year turnover,
achieving an actual financial year turnover of $53.0 million.
At the close of the financial year, our total assets under
management and trusteeship were approximately $1.7 billion.
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1.5 Conflict of interest

2.3 Governance structure

Directors must keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis,
of any interests that might potentially conflict with those of the
company. Directors are guided in this area by board-developed
procedures on disclosing potential conflicts of interest.

State Trustees’ governance structure is driven by two pieces of
legislation: the State Trustees (State Owned Enterprise) Act and
Corporations Act.
State Trustees is the State of Victoria’s first corporatised public
sector entity. Its creation followed microeconomic reforms at the
State and Federal level in the 1980s, which saw the push towards
government entities becoming commercialised, corporatised, or
privatised.

Where the Board believes a significant conflict exists for a
director on a Board matter, the director concerned does not
receive the relevant Board papers and is not present at the
meeting while the item is considered.

Although we are a profit-oriented GBE, we are also driven by the
accountabilities of private sector organisations. Accordingly, our
governance is influenced by both private company and public
entity principles.

2. Transparency and openness_
2.1 Legislation establishing the entity

For the sake of reporting our governance, we have opted for
the public sector entity approach rather than, for instance, the
Australian Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Principles.

State Trustees Limited was established in July 1994 as a result of
the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act. The State Trust
Corporation of Victoria was its predecessor. The stage was set for
State Trustees to become Victoria’s first State-owned company
with the 1992 State Owned Enterprises Act.

2.4 Competitive neutrality
State Trustees is a public financial enterprise within the meaning
of the Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria 2000 prepared by
the Department of Treasury and Finance. State Trustees operates
under a corporatised model, and pays the full suite of Commonwealth and State taxes or tax equivalents.

State Trustees was the first company that was wholly-owned by the
State of Victoria, and is a company under the Corporations Act and
a trustee company under the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (Vic).

2.2 Goals and strategies

2.5 Remuneration policies

State Trustees is committed to helping people make the most
of their financial opportunities. In particular, we look after the
finances and estates of represented persons. The Victorian Civil
and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) places these persons under
State Trustees’ care via an administration order.

Principles used to determine remuneration
State Trustees bases its executive remuneration packages on the
principle of reward for performance. Our remuneration framework – from the Government Sector Executive Remuneration
Panel (GSERP) – aims to align executive reward with achieving
strategic objectives and creating value for our shareholder.

Under State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act, the Minister is
responsible for ensuring that services relating to managing and administering estates and property are provided to clients who do not
have the resources to obtain those services. The Minister does this
by entering into a contract with State Trustees – the Community
Service Obligation (CSO) agreement – to provide these services.

Our executive officers’ pay and reward framework has two key
components:
n Base remuneration is structured as a total employment cost
package, and can be delivered as a mix of cash, superannuation, and prescribed non-financial benefits at the executives’
discretion.
Executives are offered a base pay comprising the fixed
component of pay and rewards, which is no more than 80 per
cent of the Managing Director’s base salary (as determined
by GSERP).
External remuneration consultants provide advice on
whether our executives’ base pay reflects the financial services
market for a comparable role. The Remuneration Committee
reviews senior executives’ base pay annually to compare
competitiveness with the financial services market. There
are no guaranteed base pay increases fixed in any senior
executives’ contracts.

The CSO only applies to those who don’t have the financial capacity to pay for such services. The government pays us to provide
these unprofitable services conditional on achieving certain
performance standards as stipulated in the CSO agreement.
In addition, we provide numerous services on a commercial
basis to clients who appoint us to manage their financial and
legal affairs. These services include estate planning, executor
services, enduring powers of attorney, will writing, financial
planning, tax and legal services, and genealogy.
Since emerging as a State-owned company in 1994, we’ve continually improved our customer services and accountabilities while
striving for commercial success in the trustee-services industry.
A review resulted in our Strategic Plan 2007–2011, which
incorporated our Operational Plan 2007–2013.

n

We encouraged stakeholders to participate in this review and
give feedback on their expectations of how well we conduct our
business, operations, and services. We carefully reviewed the
data from these stakeholder consultations and integrated it into
our Strategic Plan.

Short-term incentives are available to each executive depending on the role’s accountabilities and impact on organisational
and business unit performance. Senior executives can receive
a bonus of up to 20 per cent of total base remuneration, which
the Remuneration Committee approves.

3. Integrity_

Our Strategic Plan identified five key result areas for future
development:
n products and services,
n people,
n stakeholder relationships,
n operational excellence, and
n infrastructure.

3.1 Reporting quality
Relevant legislation and accounting standards guide State
Trustees’ financial reporting.
While we have only one shareholder – the State of Victoria – we
have numerous stakeholders who are interested in our ethics and
performance.

The 2007–08 financial year was the second in the five-year
strategic plan. We’re in line with or ahead on most key measures.

Key to all our activities is the safety and security of our funds
under trust for both represented persons and the broader public.

During the period, negotiations with the Victorian Department
of Human Services for a further 5-year CSO agreement were
concluded. A contract with the Minister for Community Services
was executed, dated 30 September 2007.

We inform stakeholders of our effectiveness in achieving these
goals through our Annual Report, which we produce in hard
copy, and make available online at www.statetrustees.com.au.
Our staff, who are influential stakeholders in providing services
to our clients, are continually updated on our performance. Staff
attend quarterly presentations given by the Managing Director

Other major issues are the accommodation strategy and technology strategy. Both are part of the Operational Plan and will
have a significant impact on future years’ income and cash flow.
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and can follow these up on the company intranet. We update our
clients with a number of specifically-targeted quarterly newsletters
that outline our activities.

Our procedures include disclosure mechanisms, and
confidentiality provisions that guide the roles and responsibilities
of designated protected disclosure coordinators, protected disclosure officers, investigators, and welfare managers. We regularly
remind staff of the Whistleblowers’ legislation and procedures.

3.2 Audit Committee
State Trustees has a formal Audit Committee comprising five
directors. At its discretion, the Audit Committee invites our
internal and external auditors, the Managing Director, General
Manager Corporate Operations, and Financial Controller to
committee meetings. Section 5.2 of this Corporate Governance
Report gives further details of this Committee.

There were no disclosures or investigations of improper conduct
or detrimental actions by staff during the financial year.

State Trustees Whistleblowers’ contacts
State Trustees staff can disclose possible improper conduct
or detrimental action to our protected disclosure coordinator,
Client Relations Manager, Tim Wilkinson, who is available on
(03) 9667 6200. They can also contact our protected disclosure
officers Andrew Schuette (Manager, People and Culture,
(03) 9667 6882) and John Dennison (Manager, Compliance
and Risk Management, (03) 9667 6459).

3.3 Code of conduct
State Trustees is committed to operating ethically. We have a
Code of Conduct – our public statement of how we conduct our
business and treat clients and staff – and use it to communicate
how we expect staff to act with honesty and integrity at all times.

We will refer all correspondence, phone calls, and emails from
internal or external whistleblowers to the protected disclosure
coordinator. If a person contemplating making a disclosure feels
uncomfortable doing so on State Trustees premises, they can
request a meeting in a discreet location away from the
workplace.

Our Code of Conduct contains specific clauses relating to
confidentiality, email and information technology, conflict of
interest, and personal behaviour. It expressly addresses dealing
with breaches and non-compliance with the Code.

Confidentiality

3.5 Environmental activities

We expect staff to maintain and respect the confidentiality
and privacy of clients’ personal and financial information. Staff
must not use or disclose any confidential information for any
unauthorised purpose, including for personal use or to benefit a
third party. An essential part of all staff employment arrangements is adherence to our Code of Conduct.

State Trustees is not subject to any significant environmental
regulations. However, we are committed to achieving a high
standard of environmental performance. We have a number
of initiatives that aim to reduce our environmental impact.
These include:
n maintaining a paper recycling program,
n using low energy/high light output fittings,
n saving water by implementing dual-flush cisterns,
n undertaking a cartridge recycling program for all printer and
photocopier toners,
n using photocopiers with energy-saving capacities, and
n disposing of light tubes via the EPA waste management
system.

When dealing with represented persons’ affairs, we refer staff to
the secrecy obligations set out in section 17 of the State Trustees
(State Owned Company) Act, and remind them that we are
subject to other privacy obligations that may include the Privacy
Act 1988 (C’wealth), Information Privacy Act 2000 (Vic) and
Health Records Act 2001 (Vic) depending on the circumstances.

Conflict of interest
Our Code of Conduct draws attention to conflict of interest.
We advocate acting with honesty and integrity in all aspects of
our business. In keeping with this value, we require staff to take
care to avoid real or apparent conflicts of interest between their
private affairs and our business. We define conflicts of interest as
situations where a staff member has a personal interest that may
influence (or even appear to influence) the way they perform
their official duties.

The Board is not aware of any breaches of its environmental
practices during the period covered by this report.

4. Stewardship_
4.1 State Trustees’ main functions

We regularly revise our Code of Conduct. All new employees
receive a copy during their induction training. It is also available
on our intranet, and we require staff to confirm electronically that
they have read and understood it. At that time, we also give staff
the opportunity to ask questions in relation to any aspect of the
Code they don’t understand.

State Trustees’ main functions, established under the
State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act are to provide:
n trustee services for government and individuals,
n personal administration services,
n specialised legal, financial and tax services including Willmaking, establishing powers of attorney, financial planning,
managing compensation funds, genealogical services, and
trust administration, and
n funds management services and investment products.

3.4 Whistleblowers’ protection
State Trustees is committed to the aims and objectives of the
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 (Vic). We don’t tolerate our
staff at any level acting improperly at any time, nor do we take
reprisals against those who come forward to disclose improper
conduct.

4.2 Stewardship activities
Providing personal administration services – specifically to
represented persons – is a core element of our business. In these
cases, VCAT’s Guardianship List has appointed State Trustees as
administrator of the affairs of people who are deemed unable to
make reasonable judgements in respect of their estate.

We recognise the value of transparency and accountability in
how we do business.
We support staff disclosing conduct that is corrupt, involves
substantial mismanagement of public resources, or substantial
risk to public health and safety or the environment.

VCAT’s Guardianship List started in July 1998, replacing the
former Guardianship and Administration Board. The Tribunal
and the Office of the Public Advocate both play a crucial role in
determining whether a person needs an administrator.

We take all reasonable steps to protect staff who make such disclosures from any detrimental action relating to that disclosure.
We also provide natural justice to the person who is the subject
of the disclosure.

Any person may apply to VCAT seeking the appointment of an
administrator. They may nominate a person such as a family
member, friend, accountant, solicitor, State Trustees, or a private
trustee company who they consider could undertake the role.
The Public Advocate may also apply to the Tribunal to appoint
a guardian or administrator, or to review appointment
arrangements.

Compliance with the Whistleblowers Protection Act
State Trustees encourages staff to report known or suspected
incidences of improper conduct or detrimental actions. We have
procedures to protect from reprisals a person who makes a disclosure and to properly investigate and deal with any disclosures.
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In cases where the applicant doesn’t nominate an administrator,
or VCAT considers the nominee unsuitable – for example, where
there is significant family conflict – VCAT may appoint State
Trustees or another suitable administrator.

n

n

Subject to the Guardianship and Administration Act 1986 (Vic)
and the administration order, an administrator:
n is responsible for managing the represented person’s estate,
n takes possession and care of, recovers, collects, preserves, and
administers the property and estate, and generally manages
the represented person’s financial and legal affairs, and
n exercises all rights relating to the estate that the represented
person might exercise if she/he had legal capacity.

n

n

n

In exercising such wide powers, the legislation requires
administrators to act in the represented person’s best interests.
As administrator, we take into account the represented person’s
wishes and try to encourage and help them become capable of
administering their own estate.

n

Functions of an administrator
n

Typically, an administrator performs the following functions on
behalf of a represented person:
n prepares and periodically reviews their financial plan and
budget,
n manages real estate and other assets,
n collects income including ensuring they receive all of their
entitlements,
n manages liabilities and pays accounts as they fall due,
n attends to taxation matters,
n helps them accumulate savings to enable them achieve
their aspirations,
n invests available funds, and
n manages legal and associated issues.

n

coordinated client contact program throughout Victoria,
establishing an office at VCAT to provide immediate access to
services for our clients, VCAT applicants, and Tribunal
members,
creating a new property facilitator team charged with providing
immediate response to urgent property issues such as securing
homes, motor vehicles, and other valuables including pets,
enhancing client communication by providing regular
service information to clients and the broader community,
appointing a client relations officer to deal formally with
any complaints received,
regularly meeting key stakeholders and advocacy groups
to allow them to raise concerns and give input into service
delivery initiatives. These meetings also provide an opportunity
for us to explain our administration role, responsibilities, and
obligations,
developing new information systems to improve service
delivery efficiency, particularly in managing clients' financial
affairs and file management,
developing specialist teams to focus on particular client needs.
For example we have a pensions team to verify entitlements, a
quality review team to assess the quality of work provided for
clients, and an intensive needs team especially for clients with
particular needs, and
establishing the Financial Independence Program and
Intensive Support Program.

We take seriously our stewardship of our clients’ affairs, and of
being responsible for making these economic welfare services
available. We choose our consultants carefully to ensure they are
empathetic to clients needs; we provide these services fairly,
sensitively, and confidentially.

4.3 Compliance and risk management

State Trustees currently administers more than 9,000 represented
persons, managing their assets of close to $700 million.

Risk management
The Board oversees State Trustees’ risk management and
compliance framework. We have a management framework for
assessing, monitoring, and managing operational activities,
financial reporting, and compliance risks.

Represented persons
Ages and circumstances of represented persons vary significantly.
About 38 per cent are older than 60, around 53 per cent are between 31 and 60 years, and the remaining 9 per cent are under
30 years of age. All have some form of disability such as intellectual impairment, a mental disorder, brain injury, or dementia that
impact on their ability to make reasonable decisions.

Our risk management framework is structured and transparent.
Built on the Risk Management Standard AS/NZS 4360, it allows
us to identify, assess, and manage risk across the company
systematically and consistently. The framework also defines
reporting processes to manage exposures at an appropriate
level across the organisation.

As a State-owned company, State Trustees must perform its
functions for public benefit by:
n operating its business as efficiently as possible consistent with
prudent commercial practice, and
n maximising its contribution to the economy and the State’s
well being.

The Managing Director and key senior managers make up
the Risk Committee of Management, which is responsible for
supporting the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
relating to identifying, assessing, and managing risk, and adhering to internal risk management policies and procedures. In this
role, the committee has delegated authority from the Board to
approve and oversee risk management processes.

In adopting commercial practice, a company would not normally
accept administrator appointments in circumstances where it
would incur a loss. Losses could occur by undertaking unprofitable
activities designed to meet community and social objectives.

Working with the executive and senior management, the
compliance and risk management team helps management
mitigate risks by identifying business risks and controls. The
team also monitors and regularly reports to both the Board and
management on the status of risk across the organisation.

Community Service Obligation
CSO agreements have been in place between State Trustees and
the Minister responsible for the Department of Human Services
since July 1994, and covers services to a range of State Trustees
clients.

All staff are trained to understand their compliance responsibilities and the processes and policies for reporting and rectifying
breaches.

We deliver these services under legislation that includes the
State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act, Administration and
Probate Act 1958 (Vic), Trustee Act 1958 (Vic), and Guardianship
and Administration Act. In part, these ensure that members of
the public have access to services relating to managing and
administering their estates and property.

Compliance and control
State Trustees is committed to meeting strong compliance
and ethical standards. Our Compliance Policy guides us in
meeting our ongoing and continuously changing compliance
requirements and obligations.

In 2007–08, State Trustees received income of $14.7 million
under the CSO agreement.

The policy, which overarches our annual Organisational
Compliance Plan, reflects the company’s commitment to
compliance. We developed this policy to meet the standards
in Australian Standard AS3806 – Compliance Programs.

Service improvements
Over the past decade or so, we have implemented numerous
improvements to client services. These include:
n increasing client accessibility by establishing a dedicated
customer service centre in Melbourne's CBD,
n appointing a client relations team and establishing a

To help us more effectively manage our financial services
compliance responsibilities, we have a management committee
titled the Australian Financial Services (AFS) Licence Committee.
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This committee reviews and monitors ongoing compliance with
AFS licence obligations. Its key responsibilities include:
n ensuring our financial reporting is complete and accurate,
n reviewing key risks to compliance with AFS licence obligations,
n resolving AFS licence issues and informing the Managing
Director of risk discussions and outcomes, and
n assessing materiality of compliance breaches and
recommending remedial action according to our Breaches
Policy and Procedures.

The Board’s role
The Board’s role is to provide strategic guidance to the company
within a framework of prudent and effective controls that enables
risk to be assessed and managed. The Board:
n sets the company’s strategic aims,
n ensures that the necessary financial and human resources
are in place for the company to meet its objectives,
n reviews management performance,
n sets the company’s values and standards, and
n ensures that it understands and meets its obligations to
stakeholders.

Fraud control
State Trustees has a number of management systems, process
controls, and procedures directed at preventing or minimising the
risk of fraud.

The Board has delegated responsibility for operating and
administering State Trustees to the Managing Director, the CLT,
and senior management. Responsibilities are delineated by
formal authority delegations.

The Risk Committee of Management oversees any alleged fraud
investigation and reviews allegations, then reports its findings
and recommendations to the Managing Director. All instances
of fraud must be reported to State Trustees’ Board.

Independent professional advice
and access to company information
Each director has the right to access all relevant State Trustees’
executives and information and, subject to prior consultation with
the Chairman, may seek independent professional advice from a
suitably qualified adviser at the company’s expense.

Business continuity planning
The Business Continuity Plan is a framework designed to ensure
that critical processes continue if a serious unplanned event
occurs that may disrupt the business.

Board processes

During the year, State Trustees conducted a full-scale testing
exercise of the plan to accurately test the plan’s performance
and robustness. In conjunction with an external specialist adviser,
we designed and implemented a test scenario. We learnt from
the results, and identified and implemented improvements to
the plan.

The full Board holds 11 scheduled meetings each year, plus
strategy and extraordinary meetings as needed to address specific significant matters that may arise. During January, when a
formal Board meeting is not scheduled, Directors receive update
reports from the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer.
The Chairman, Managing Director, and Company Secretary
prepare meeting agendas. Standing items include the Managing
Director’s report, updates from Board committee meetings,
financial reports, strategic matters, governance, and compliance.
All Directors receive Board papers at least four days before
meetings. Executives are regularly involved in Board discussions
and Directors have other opportunities for contact with a wider
group of employees.

5. Leadership_
5.1 Board of directors
Board composition
The organisation’s sole shareholder is the State of Victoria. It is
represented by the Treasurer who selects the State Trustees’ Board.
Details of the Board members, their experience, expertise, qualifications, terms of office, and independent status are set out in
the Board of Directors section of the Directors’ Report.

Conflicts of interest are noted and declared at each Board
meeting. Directors make declarations of private interests to
government annually with changes noted and declared at each
Board meeting.

There are seven non-executive directors and one executive
director at the date of signing the Directors’ Report.

5.2 Board committees
The Board has established a number of committees to help it
perform its duties and allow detailed consideration of complex
issues. Its current standing committees are the Audit, Compliance,
Investment, and Remuneration Committees, as well as the
State Trustees Australia Foundation (STAF) Advisory Committee.
Generally, committee structures and membership are reviewed
annually. In the case of the STAF Advisory Committee, members
who are not State Trustees’ representatives are appointed for
three years.

The Board seeks to ensure that:
n at any point in time, its membership represents an appropriate
balance between directors with experience and knowledge of
the company, and directors with an external or fresh
perspective, and
n the Board size is conducive to effective discussion and
efficient decision-making.

The Board’s guiding principles
The Board operates according to the broad principles set out in
its charter, which details the Board’s role, composition, and responsibilities. These are additional to the company’s Constitution.
The Company Secretary reviews the Board of Directors’ Charter
at least annually and the Board receives recommended changes
for its approval. The Company Secretary and the management
representative responsible for preparing the relevant committee’s
papers review each committee’s charter at least annually. Any
recommended changes to committee charters are submitted to
the respective committees, and any changes that are approved
are then submitted to the Board for its approval.

Each committee has its own written charter setting out its roles
and responsibilities, composition, structure, membership requirements, and the manner in which the committee operates. We
review these charters annually. We also regularly review the
chairs and members of each committee as part of normal Board
governance. During the year we made changes to the Audit,
Investment and Remuneration Committees, details of which
are below.

Chairman and Managing Director

All Board committees have authority, within the scope of their
responsibilities, to seek any information they require from any
employee or external party. They may also undertake any other
activities consistent with their charters.

The Board and all the committees (except STAF) have at least
one closed session each year without management being present.

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board, ensuring
directors are properly briefed in all matters relevant to their role
and responsibilities, facilitating Board discussions, and managing
the Board’s relationship with the company’s senior executives.

The number of times each committee met during the year, and
committee members’ attendance record, are disclosed in the
table of directors’ meetings in the Directors’ Report.

The Managing Director is responsible for implementing group
strategies and policies.
The Board charter specifies that the roles of Chairman and
Managing Director are not to be held by the same person.
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Audit Committee

Investment Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises five non-executive
directors. Alice Williams was its Chairperson until 31 August
2007, upon which date her resignation was effective.

The Investment Committee comprises four non-executive Directors
and one executive director. Daryl Hawkey is the Chairperson, and
John Marcard, Tony Fitzgerald, John Price and Julie Elliot are its
current members. During the year, Alice Williams resigned and
Julie Elliot was appointed.

Committee member John Marcard assumed the chair during the
period until a suitably qualified replacement member joined the
Committee.

The Investment Committee’s main responsibilities include:
n overseeing the investment strategies and performance of
corporate investments and of the Common and Premium
Funds,
n monitoring and reviewing the company’s Investment Policy,
n monitoring and reviewing the company’s financial planning,
including approving lists of investments, standard portfolio
investment mix, investment guidelines, procedures for
determining and reviewing investments and compliance
with relevant regulatory legislation, and
n monitoring and reviewing the list of external service providers,
including brokers, to ensure the company and its subsidiaries
continue to act in the best interests of unit holders and/or
beneficiaries.

During the year, Committee members Linda Berry and John Price
remained on the Committee, and Julie Elliot and Patrick Burroughs
were appointed. From 1 July 2008 Patrick Burroughs assumed
the role of Chairperson.
The Audit Committee, at its discretion, invites the internal
and external auditors, Managing Director, General Manager
Corporate Operations, and Financial Controller to attend its
meetings.
The Committee advises on establishing and maintaining a
framework of internal control for managing State Trustees.
The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the internal
audit program conducted each financial year.

Remuneration Committee

The internal auditors help the Board ensure compliance with
internal controls and risk management programs by regularly
reviewing how well the compliance and control systems function.

The remuneration committee comprises four non-executive
Directors and one executive director. The committee’s chairperson is John Marcard, and its current members are Tony
Fitzgerald, Daryl Hawkey, Irene Irvine, and Patrick Burroughs.
During the year, Alice Williams resigned and Patrick Burroughs
was appointed.

The Audit Committee also holds an annual meeting with the
internal and external auditors without management being
present.
The Auditor General is the organisation’s official external auditor,
but he has subcontracted State Trustees’ external audit to Ernst
& Young. The company outsources the internal audit function to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The Remuneration Committee operates according to its charter.
It advises the Board on general remuneration and incentive
policies and practices, and makes specific recommendations
on remuneration packages and other employment terms for
the Managing Director and other senior executives.

The Audit Committee:
n oversees financial reporting and statutory accounts, and
corporate accounting policies,
n reviews, approve and monitor the system of internal controls,
n reviews the external audit plan, and
n sets an internal audit program.

Remuneration of executives, including the Managing Director,
is determined with reference to the Government Sector Executive
Remuneration Panel (GSERP).
The Committee also oversees management succession planning
and reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on
superannuation arrangements.

Compliance Committee
The Compliance Committee comprises four non-executive
Directors and one executive director. The Committee’s
Chairperson is Irene Irvine, and its members are John Marcard,
Tony Fitzgerald, Daryl Hawkey and Linda Berry.

State Trustees Australia Foundation Advisory Committee

Under its charter, the committee reviews State Trustees’ compliance with all relevant legislative, regulatory and contractual
obligations, reviews and monitors how State Trustees’ overall
compliance framework is maintained and implemented, and
assesses and monitors business risks as they relate to
compliance.

Other Committee members are Managing Director Tony
Fitzgerald, and John Annison and Rhonda Galbally – two
non-director members with a strong background in community
services and philanthropy.

On 1 July 2007, Director John Price joined the Committee and
became Chairperson.

The role of the STAF Advisory Committee, which meets once
a year, is to recommend how the STAF income should be distributed to, or benefit eligible charitable recipients. Grants for this
purpose are generated from income earned on donations where
the donors have not made requests for grants to specific
charities.

The Compliance Committee’s main responsibilities include:
n reviewing management compliance reports and monitoring
management responses to compliance issues,
n meeting with the managed investments compliance plan
auditors,
n monitoring the effectiveness and completeness of compliance
reporting,
n monitoring and overseeing compliance with relevant
legislative, regulatory, and contractual obligations (of a
non-financial or non-accounting nature),
n reviewing and approving the process used to identify, monitor,
and manage compliance-related risks,
n ensuring that where compliance breaches are identified,
appropriate and timely reporting occurs and strategies to
rectify the breach are implemented on a timely basis, and
n reviewing and approving the design of the annual
compliance program.
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Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2008
Consolidated
entity
Notes
Revenue from continuing operations
Commissions and fees
Community Service Obligation revenue
Other operating revenue
Dividend from subsidiary company

2

Total revenue
Expenses from continuing operations
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Lease rental charges – operating leases
Audit expenses
Employee benefits expense
Other expenses

2
29
2

Total expenses
Profit from continuing operations
before income tax equivalent
Income tax equivalent expense
relating to continuing operations

3

Net profit
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Parent
entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

37,851
14,681
455
-

35,824
9,851
1,645
-

35,732
14,681
412
1,958

33,471
9,851
912
1,544

52,987

47,320

52,783

45,778

1,980
347
176
36,483
9,851

2,007
188
154
32,262
8,880

1,980
347
158
36,483
9,388

2,007
188
134
32,262
8,866

48,837

43,491

48,356

43,457

4,150

3,829

4,427

2,321

1,037

1,308

344

396

3,113

2,521

4,083

1,925

Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2008
Consolidated
entity

Parent
entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

5,253
8,926
15,105
2,028
654

4,572
6,867
16,275
1,695
534

4,560
9,006
8,339
1,914
654

3,404
7,500
8,971
1,694
534

31,966

29,943

24,473

22,103

23,415
312

19,216
228

23,415
5,200
312

19,216
5,200
228

Total non-current assets

23,727

19,444

28,927

24,644

Total assets

55,693

49,387

53,400

46,747

6,285
3
4,534

4,783
131
4,383

5,544
3
4,534

4,739
57
4,383

10,822

9,297

10,081

9,179

535
1,038

552
760

535
1,038

552
760

Notes
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other financial assets
Current tax assets
Other assets

4
5
6
7
8

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant, and equipment
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

9
11
12

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables
Current tax liabilities
Provisions

13
14
15

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

16
17

Total non-current liabilities

1,573

1,312

1,573

1,312

Total liabilities

12,395

10,609

11,654

10,491

Net assets

43,298

38,778

41,746

36,256

12,462
18,926
11,910

12,462
15,363
10,953

12,462
18,926
10,358

12,462
15,363
8,431

43,298

38,778

41,746

36,256

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Retained profits

19
20
21

Total equity
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

43

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2008
Consolidated
entity
Notes
Total equity at the start of the financial year
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings, net of tax
Changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax

20

Parent
entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

38,778

33,600

36,256

31,674

3,687

5,507

3,687

5,507

-

-

Net income recognised directly in equity

3,687

5,507

3,687

5,507

Profit for the year

3,113

2,521

4,083

1,925

Total recognised income and expense for the year

6,800

8,028

7,770

7,432

(2,280)

(2,850)

(2,280)

(2,850)

43,298

38,778

41,746

36,256

Dividends provided for or paid

21

Total equity at the end of the financial year

-

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash Flow Statement for the
financial year ended 30 June 2008
Consolidated
entity
Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Commissions and fees received
Community Service Obligation income received
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Interest received
Payments of income tax equivalent
Net cash inflow from operating activities

24b

Parent
entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

37,170
13,255
(8,783)
(35,249)
456
(2,657)

35,174
9,883
(8,697)
(32,011)
1,332
(280)

35,095
13,255
(8,999)
(35,249)
414
(1,777)

32,758
9,883
(8,687)
(32,011)
762
662

4,192

5,401

2,739

3,367

54
(2,454)

21
(1,458)

54
(2,454)

21
(1,458)

3,794

1,045

2,032

661

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment
Proceeds on maturity of commercial bills and
redemption of interests in managed investment scheme
Payments for commercial bills and redemption of
interests in managed investment scheme

(2,625)

(1,051)

(1,400)

(714)

Net cash outflow from investing activities

(1,231)

(1,443)

(1,768)

(1,490)

Cash flows from financing activities
Loans to related entity
Dividends received
Dividends paid

(2,280)

(2,850)

507
1,958
(2,280)

(140)
1,544
(2,850)

(2,280)

(2,850)

185

(1,446)

681

1,108

1,156

431

4,572

3,464

3,404

2,973

5,253

4,572

4,560

3,404

21

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the
start of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the financial year

4

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Impairment of assets

Note 1. Statement of significant_
accounting policies_

We assess all assets for impairment annually, and whenever an
event occurs that may indicate the asset may be impaired. We
recognise an impairment loss when the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the assets’ fair value less the costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, we group assets
at the lowest levels where there are separately identifiable cash
flows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). If assets are
impaired, we test them whenever events arise that may indicate
the impairment may have reversed.

The financial report of State Trustees Limited for the year
ended 30 June 2008 was authorised for issuance in accordance
with a resolution of the directors on 25 August 2008.

Statement of compliance
These financial statements comprise a general-purpose financial
report. We have prepared it on an accrual basis to conform with
the Financial Management Act 1994, Australian Accounting
Standards, and the Corporations Act 2001. The financial report
also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the balance sheet and cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, and other readily convertible short-term
(maturities of three months or less) investments that are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Basis of preparation
We have prepared the financial report based on historical costs,
except for the following categories of assets that we measure on
a fair value basis; financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, land, and buildings.

Receivables

In applying IFRS, management is required to make judgements,
estimates, and assumptions about carrying values of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. We have based
our estimates and associated assumptions on historical experience
and various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the
circumstances. The results of these assumptions form the basis of
our judgements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

We recognise trade receivables initially at fair value and subsequently measure at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less provision for doubtful debts.
We regularly review trade receivables collectability, and write-off
debts known to be uncollectible. We provide for doubtful receivables when we have objective evidence that we may not be able
to collect according to the original terms. We do not discount
cash flows relating to short-term receivables if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

We review the estimates and underlying assumptions on an
ongoing basis. We recognise revisions to accounting estimates in
the period the estimate is revised, whether it is current, or current
and future periods.

Investments and other financial assets

Principles of consolidation

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the parent entity, State Trustees Limited, and its
controlled entity, STL Financial Services Limited. We refer to
these collectively throughout these financial statements as the
‘economic entity’ and ‘consolidated entity’. We have eliminated
all inter-entity balances and transactions and have fully consolidated subsidiaries from the date the group obtained control.
The controlled entity ceases to be consolidated when control
is transferred out of the group.

We classify other investments at fair value through profit or loss.
We directly recognise gains and losses from changes in fair value
in the income statement.
We quote actively traded investments in organised financial
markets at quoted market bid prices at the close of business on
the balance sheet date. We record investments in unlisted trusts
at the redemption value per unit as reported by the managers of
such funds.

Loans and receivables

Revenue recognition

We record trade receivables, loans, and other receivables at amortised cost, using the effective interest method less impairment.
This method calculates the amortised cost of financial assets and
allocates interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the asset, or where
appropriate, a shorter period. We recognise gains and losses in
profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised
or impaired, as well as through amortisation.

We recognise and measure revenue at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent that it is probable
the economic benefits will flow to the group over time and revenue can be reliably measured. We have disclosed revenue,
where applicable, net of returns, allowances duties, and taxes.
We recognise our major activities’ revenue as follows:

Commissions and fees
We charge commissions and fees according to our published
schedule of fees. We recognise revenue on an accruals basis
when we provide the service.

Controlled unlisted companies
We carry investments in controlled unlisted companies at cost
and perform impairment tests annually.

Community Service Obligation (CSO) revenue

Property, plant, and equipment

We receive revenue from the State of Victoria under the CSO
agreement. This revenue is based on State Trustees providing
financial services management to the community as defined by
the agreement, and is recognised on an accruals basis when
we provide the service.

We measure land and buildings at fair value, less subsequent depreciation for buildings, based on periodic (but at least triennial)
valuations by external independent valuers. We eliminate any
accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date against the
asset’s gross carrying amount, and restate the net amount to the
asset’s revalued amount. We state all other property, plant, and
equipment at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure directly attributable to acquiring the items.

Interest revenue
We recognise interest revenue on a time-proportionate basis
that takes into account the effective interest method.

Dividends and trust distributions

We include subsequent costs in the asset’s carrying amount or recognise it as a separate asset when we assess that the item might
provide future economic benefits and we can measure the item’s
cost reliably. We charge all other repairs and maintenance as an
expense to the income statement during the period incurred.

We recognise dividends and trust distributions as revenue when
the right to receive payment is established.
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We calculate depreciation on fixed assets using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Terms are as
follows:

We measure employee benefit provisions that we do not expect
to be settled within 12 months at the estimated future cash
outflows’ present value up to the reporting date. We recognise
these as non-current liabilities.

Buildings

34 years

Accounting for the goods and services tax (GST)

Building refurbishment

12 years

Leasehold improvements

Lease term

Furniture and fittings

13 years

We recognise revenues, expenses, and assets net of GST except
where the GST incurred is not recoverable. In this case, we recognise it as part of the cost of an asset acquisition or part of an
expense item.

Computers

3 years

Office

7 years

Telephone system

5 years

System development

3 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

We state receivables and payables inclusive of GST receivable or
payable and include the net GST we can recover, or are due to
pay, to the tax authority.
We present cash flows on a gross basis. We present their GST
component (arising from investing or financing activities) as
operating cash flow.

Income tax equivalent

We capitalise and amortise systems’ development costs that will
produce long-term company benefits, and amortise these over
the asset’s useful life. We regularly review and adjust the costs,
residual values, and useful lives of these systems, at least yearly
at balance sheet date.

State Trustees is subject to the income tax equivalent system,
which puts it on the same footing as private enterprise. The entity
pays a tax equivalent to the Victorian Government Consolidated
Fund, but as a public authority, under the terms of Section 23(d)
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936, it is exempt from
Federal income tax.

We immediately write down an asset’s carrying amount to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount. We determine gains and losses
on disposals by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount
and include them in our income statement.

We account for the tax expense in our Income Statement.
We have current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet. We account for these based on the tax rates we
think will apply at the time of paying the tax. If our calculations
are incorrect, or if the tax rate changes, we adjust our provisions.

Land and building revaluations

We measure current and previous periods’ current tax assets
and liabilities at the amount we expect to recover from or pay to
the Victorian Government Consolidated Fund. We compute the
amount based on the current period’s taxable income and use
tax rates and laws that are substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date.

We credit any revaluation increase to the asset revaluation
reserve included in equity. If a future revaluation results in a
decrease, it will be initially offset against the asset revaluation
reserve, and any remaining amount will be recognised directly
in the profit or loss.
We revalued land and buildings to recoverable amounts based
on the fair value subject to existing use as at the 30 June 2008
in accordance with AASB 116. In June 2008, the directors
obtained an independent valuation of the company-owned land
and buildings. The independent valuer was Colliers International
Consultancy and Valuation Pty Ltd. We will perform the next valuation at 30 June 2010, or earlier if there is any material change
to the value of the land and building.

We measure deferred income tax assets and liabilities at the tax
rates we expect will apply when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled. We base these on tax rates and laws substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.
At each balance sheet date, we:
n provide deferred income tax on all temporary differences
between the asset and liability tax bases and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes,
n review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and reduce
it if it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
flow to the entity, and
n reassess unrecognised deferred income tax assets and
recognise them to the extent that it is probable future tax
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Disposal
An item of property, plant, and equipment is derecognised on
disposal or when we can expect no further future economic
benefits from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised.

We recognise income taxes relating to items recognised directly
in equity, such as the asset revaluation reserve, in equity and not
in profit or loss.

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services unpaid
before year-end, and arise when we are obliged to make future
payments in respect of purchased goods and services. These are
unsecured and are generally paid within 30 days.

Tax consolidation legislation

Employee benefits and provisions

The head entity and its controlled entity form a tax-consolidated
group and continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The group has determined the appropriate
amount of current and deferred taxes to allocate to its members.

State Trustees Limited and its wholly owned Australian controlled
entity STL Financial Services Limited have implemented
consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2004.

We recognise provisions when the group has a present (legal
or constructive) obligation resulting from a past event, and it is
probable that funds will be required to settle future obligations.

We recognise assets and liabilities under tax-funding agreements
as amounts receivable from, or payable to, entities in the group.

We make provision for benefits accruing to employees in respect
of wages and salaries, annual leave, and long service leave
when it is probable that they will need to be settled and can be
measured reliably.

We recognise any difference between the amounts assumed and
receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly owned tax consolidated
entities.

We measure the employee benefits expected to settle within
12 months at their nominal values, and use the remuneration
rates we expect to apply at the time of settlement. These are
recognised as current liabilities.
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Executor Services revenue accrual
We accrue revenue for executor services over the estimated service period. The time to administer an estate can vary due to complications or other circumstances. The fees and charges can vary due to the nature of estimates used for estate values and commission rates.
We bring to account revenue, on a straight-line basis, over a nine-month period, except where the estate is completed earlier and
remaining revenue is brought to account.

Trustee obligations
The Company is an authorised trustee corporation as defined in Section 9 of the Corporations Act 2001. The Australian Securities and
Investments Commission (ASIC) no longer give relief to trustee corporations under Class Order 98/0105. Therefore, we are required to
disclose the following in our financial statements:
“Liabilities the company incurs while acting as trustee or representative to the extent the company has a valid and subsisting right of
indemnity of assets in respect of such liabilities and such assets are sufficient to satisfy such right of indemnity, and
“Assets, consisting of the value, if any, of such right of indemnity arising from the incurring of such liabilities.”

Rounding
As the company is of a kind specified in ASIC’s Class Order 98/0100, we have rounded the amounts in the financial statements and
the Directors’ Report to the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.

New accounting standards and interpretations
Below we have listed the changes in Australian Accounting Standards that we believe will have an impact on the entity’s financial
reporting and disclosure practices.
AASB
Amendment/
Standard

Title

Nature of change to accounting
policy and impact on financial report

Application
date of standard

Application date
for the entity

AASB 2007-3

Amendment to Australian
Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 8, (AASB 5, AASB 6,
AASB 102, AASB 107, AASB 119,
AASB 127, AASB 134, AASB 136,
AASB 1023, AASB 1038).

The company has elected to early
adopt AASB 8 (Segment Reporting)
which supersedes AASB 114. As the
company is a non-disclosing entity
it is no longer required to disclose
segment information.

1 January 2009

30 June 2007

AASB 8

Operating segments

Refer to AASB 2007-3 (above)

1 January 2009

30 June 2007

Contributed equity
We classify ordinary shares of the company as equity. We show incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Operating leases
We recognise operating lease payments as an expense in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

(18)
(1,021)
1,494

3
180
1,462

(18)
(476)
906

3
84
825

455

1,645

412

912

323
329
208
109
768
28
108

184
321
171
105
908
72
99

323
329
208
109
768
28
108

184
321
171
105
908
72
99

1,873

1,860

1,873

1,860

107

147

107

147

107

147

107

147

4,134
1,471
4,246

3,448
1,389
4,043

3,689
1,471
4,228

3,451
1,389
4,026

9,851

8,880

9,388

8,866

Note 2. Other revenue and expenses_
INCOME
Revenue from operating activities
n Profit/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets
n Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value
n Interest from other persons

EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation
n Building
n Building improvements
n Leasehold improvements
n Fixtures and fittings
n Computer and office equipment
n Telephone system
n Motor vehicles

Amortisation
n System development

Other expenses
n Corporate
n Building and office
n Other

Note 3. Income tax equivalent expense_
We reconcile the difference between income tax equivalent expense in the
financial statements, and the prima facie income tax equivalent expense, as follows:
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before income tax equivalent

4,150

3,829

4,427

2,321

Prima facie tax at 30%

1,245

1,149

1,328

696

Tax effect of permanent differences:
n Income tax payable transferred from subsidiary
n Imputation credit adjustment
n Other not deductible
n Adjustment on prior year

(11)
10
(207)

(22)
13
168

(776)
(11)
10
(207)

(461)
(22)
13
170

Total income tax equivalent attributable to operating profit

1,037

1,308

344

396

(1,467)
430

(1,633)
325

(774)
430

(691)
295

(1,037)

(1,308)

(344)

(396)

Total income tax equivalent comprises movements in:
n current tax expense equivalent
n deferred tax expense equivalent
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Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

Cash on hand and at bank
Short term money market deposits at call

2,203
3,050

547
4,025

2,060
2,500

504
2,900

Total cash assets

5,253

4,572

4,560

3,404

Debtors
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

1,032
(16)

1,170
(24)

1,032
(16)

1,170
(24)

Amount owed by related entity
Accrued income

1,016
7,910

1,146
5,721

1,016
438
7,552

1,146
945
5,409

Total current receivables

8,926

6,867

9,006

7,500

Advances to clients
Investments in managed investment schemes

2,424
12,681

2,589
13,686

2,424
5,915

2,589
6,382

Total current other financial assets

15,105

16,275

8,339

8,971

(attributable to timing differences)
Unrealised Losses
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for employee entitlements
Accrued expenses
Accrued audit fees

211
5
1,577
206
29

7
1,421
254
13

100
5
1,577
206
26

7
1,421
254
12

Total current tax assets

2,028

1,695

1,914

1,694

Note 4. Cash and cash equivalents_

Note 5. Receivables (current)_

Note 6. Other financial assets (current)_

Note 7. Current tax assets_

Note 8. Other assets (current)_
Prepayments

654

534

654

534

Total current other assets

654

534

654

534
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Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

Land
Revaluation of asset

3,400
1,850

2,300
1,100

3,400
1,850

2,300
1,100

Net book value – land at fair value (2008 valuation)

5,250

3,400

5,250

3,400

12,350
105
1,947
(652)

8,100
43
4,713
(506)

12,350
105
1,947
(652)

8,100
43
4,713
(506)

13,750

12,350

13,750

12,350

652
(652)

506
(506)

652
(652)

506
(506)

Note 9. Property, plant, and equipment_

Building
Opening value
Additions at cost
Revaluation
Elimination of accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year
Elimination of accumulated depreciation
Net book value –building at fair value (2008 valuation)
Leasehold improvements
Opening value at cost
Additions at cost
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year

-

-

-

-

13,750

12,350

13,750

12,350

1,386
490

988
398

1,386
490

988
398

1,876

1,386

1,876

1,386

603
208

432
171

603
208

432
171

811

603

811

603

Net book value – leasehold improvements

1,065

783

1,065

783

Furniture and fittings
Opening value at cost
Additions at cost
Disposals

2,010
75
(17)

1,875
135
-

2,010
75
(17)

1,875
135
-

2,068

2,010

2,068

2,010

1,263
109

1,158
105

1263
109

1,158
105

1,372

1,263

1,372

1,263

696

747

696

747

11,875
957

11,069
806

11,875
957

11,069
806

12,832

11,875

12,832

11,875

10,385
795

9,406
979

10,385
795

9,406
979

11,180

10,385

11,180

10,385

1,652

1,490

1,652

1,490

520
87
(10)

512
26
(18)

520
87
(10)

512
26
(18)

597

520

597

520

305
108

206
99

305
108

206
99

413

305

413

305

184

215

184

215

10,002
43

9,997
5

10,002
43

9,997
5

10,045

10,002

10,045

10,002

9,816
107

9,669
147

9,816
107

9,669
147

Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year
Net book value – furniture and fittings
Computer and office equipment
Opening value at cost
Additions at cost
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year
Net book value – computer and office equipment
Motor vehicles
Opening value at cost
Additions at cost
Disposals
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year
Net book value – motor vehicles
System development
Opening value at cost
Additions at cost
Opening accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year

9,923

9,816

9,923

9,816

Net book value – system development

122

186

122

186

Net book value – capital WIP additions

696

45

696

45

23,415

19,216

23,415

19,216

Total property, plant and equipment

We have not taken into account capital gains tax (CGT) in determining the carrying amounts of land and buildings. As we acquired the land and buildings
before CGT was introduced, the economic entity is not liable to pay CGT except with respect to building refurbishments since the introduction of CGT.
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Consolidated entity
2008
$000s

2007
$000s

Parent entity
2008
$000s

2007
$000s

Note 10. Reserve Fund – Trustee Companies Act_
Under the Trustee Companies Act 1984 (the Act) a reserve fund of not less than half of one per cent of the value of companymanaged trust estates in Victoria must be provided. In the event that a liquidator, receiver, or manager is appointed, reserve fund
monies are to be paid from the trustee company according to Section 39(3) of the Act. Section 38 of the Act requires the company
to place assets into a reserve fund, but these assets must be managed consistent with requirements of the Trustee Act 1958.
Assets comprising the Reserve Fund
Land and building: Note 9
Reserve fund requirements

19,000
7,376

15,750
7,500

19,000
7,376

15,750
7,500

Surplus

11,624

8,250

11,624

8,250

Controlled entity at cost (Note 25)

-

-

5,200

5,200

Total non-current other financial assets

-

-

5,200

5,200

Note 11. Other financial assets (non-current)_

Note 12. Deferred tax assets (non-current)_
(attributable to timing differences)
Provision for employee benefits

312

228

312

228

Total non-current deferred tax assets

312

228

312

228

Trade creditors, unsecured
Other creditors, unsecured
Staffing costs and packages
Income tax
Income attributable to future periods

912
1,985
1,722
1,433
233

956
1,197
1,383
949
298

883
1,965
1,722
741
233

935
1,174
1,383
949
298

Total current payables

6,285

4,783

5,544

4,739

(attributable to timing differences)
Unrealised gains on investments
FBT

3

130
1

3

56
1

Total current tax liabilities

3

131

3

57

Employee entitlements
Specific provisions

4,534
-

4,033
350

4,534
-

4,033
350

Total current provisions

4,534

4,383

4,534

4,383

Note 13. Payables (current)_

Note 14. Current tax liabilities_

Note 15. Provisions (current)_

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year,
other than employee benefits are set out below:
Specific provisions 2008*

$000

Carrying amount at start of year
Additional provisions recognised
Payments / other sacrifices of economic benefits

350
–
350

Total current provisions

–

* A complex tax issue arose in 2007 in relation to trusts where a split of capital and income occurs,
and where there’s a need for funds to be allocated to different beneficiaries. This was resolved in 2008.
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Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

(attributable to timing differences)
Plant and Equipment
Asset revaluation reserve

118
417

246
306

118
417

246
306

Total current non-current deferred tax liabilities

535

552

535

552

Employee entitlements

1,038

760

1,038

760

Total non-current provisions

1,038

760

1,038

760

Aggregate employee entitlement liability

7,294

6,176

7,294

6,176

Included in:
n Payables: Note 13
n Other provisions current: Note 15
n Other provisions non-current: Note 17

1,722
4,534
1,038

1,383
4,033
760

1,722
4,534
1,038

1,383
4,033
760

Total employee entitlements

7,294

6,176

7,294

6,176

551

480

551

480

Note 16. Deferred tax liabilities (non-current)_

Note 17. Provisions (non-current)_

Note 18. Employee entitlements_

Employee numbers at reporting date

Superannuation Commitments
The Company and employees contribute to two defined contribution superannuation funds.
The two funds are known as:
n The Universal Superscheme, which is managed by its trustee, MLC Nominees Pty Ltd, ABN 93 002 814 959,
and administered by National Australia Financial Management Limited, ABN 56 000 176 116.
n The Vic Superscheme, which is managed by its trustee, VicSuper Fund, ABN 69 087 619 412.
n Contributions made by the company to these schemes are expensed as incurred.

Note 19. Contributed equity_
Share capital
Ordinary shares(a): (12,461,664 fully paid shares, 2007: 12,461,664)

12,462

12,462

12,462

12,462

12,462

12,462

12,462

12,462

(a) There was no movement in issued shares for the year.

The entity has only one shareholder, the State of Victoria, which owns all the ordinary shares. This entitles the holder to
receive dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company that is in proportion to the number of, and amounts paid
on, the shares held.

Note 20. Reserves_
Asset revaluation reserve
General reserve (see Note 10)

11,550
7,376

7,863
7,500

11,550
7,376

7,863
7,500

Total reserves

18,926

15,363

18,926

15,363

7,863
3,798

2,356
5,813

7,863
3,798

2,356
5,813

(111)

(306)

(111)

(306)

11,550

7,863

11,550

7,863

Asset revaluation reserve
Balance at start of financial year
Revaluation increments
Provision for deferred tax liability
– building refurbishment subject to CGT
Balance at end of financial year

On 30 June 1999, in keeping with legislation amending the State Trustees (State Owned Company) Act 1994, the corpus amounts
held by Common Funds managed by the parent entity were paid to State Trustees and transferred to a general reserve.
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Consolidated entity
2008
$000s

Parent entity

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

Note 21. Retained profits_
Net profit

3,113

2,521

4,083

1,925

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year

10,953

12,776

8,431

10,850

Total available for appropriation

14,066

15,297

12,514

12,775

2,280
(124)

2,850
1,494

2,280
(124)

2,850
1,494

11,910

10,953

10,358

8,431

Operating lease commitments
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than two years
Later than two years but not later than five years

863
1,497
-

271
280
410

863
1,497
-

271
280
410

Operating expenditure liability

2,360

961

2,360

961

Operating expenditure contracted for is payable as follows
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than two years
Later than two years but not later than five years

286
128
-

452
196
95

286
128
-

452
196
95

Operating expenditure liability

414

743

414

743

Dividends paid
Profits transferred to/(from) general reserve (per Trustee Act)
Retained profits at the end of the financial year

Note 22. Commitments_

Capital expenditure contracted for is payable as follows:
Not later than one year

-

21

-

21

Capital expenditure commitments

-

21

-

21

Contingent assets
STL is seeking reimbursement of expenses incurred in a client-related matter.
Realising the receivable depends on selling a property, the title to which is
encumbered with a caveat.

5

141

5

141

Total contingent assets

5

141

5

141

Contingent liabilities: Performance bonds
n Guarantee in favour of the ASX Settlement and Transfer Corporation
Pty Ltd issued in relation to the company’s membership of CHESS
n Guarantee in favour of ASIC, AFS Licence

500
20

500
20

500
20

500
20

Total contingent liabilities*

520

520

520

520

Note 23. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities_

*As part of a range of litigation brought by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) on behalf of investors
following the collapse of the Westpoint Group, ASIC has commenced proceedings against State Trustees in respect of the failed
60 Market Street Trust. ASIC alleges that State Trustees, as the trustee of an unsecured mezzanine note issued by Market Street
Mezzanine Ltd (in liquidation), breached its duty to the mezzanine note holders and failed to comply with its obligations under
the Corporations Act. State Trustees has dedicated significant resources to this matter and is taking all necessary steps to defend
its position.
We do not anticipate material losses in respect of any of the above contingent liabilities.
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Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

3,113

2,521

4,083

1,925

18
-

(3)
-

18
(1,958)

(3)
(1,544)

1,980

2,007

1,980

2,007

(254)
(417)
779
(350)

(87)
(238)
325
145

(182)
(304)
779
(350)

(53)
(242)
325
145

(2,059)
(120)

(519)
35

(2,012)
(120)

(419)
35

1,502

1,215

805

1,191

4,192

5,401

2,739

3,367

Note 24. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows_
a. Cash reconciliation
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes
cash at bank and on hand, and short term money market deposits
at call, as shown in Note 4.
b. Reconciliation of net cash inflow from net profit after tax to
net cash provided by operating activities
Net profit after income tax equivalent
Add/(less): non-operating activities
- sale of fixed assets
- dividend from related entity
Adjustments for non-cash income and expense items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Movement in provision for:
n Deferred tax liability
n Deferred tax asset
n Employee entitlements
n Other provisions
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in:
n Receivables
n Prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in:
n Payables
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Note 25. Controlled entities_
The consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2008 include the following controlled entities.
The financial year of the controlled entities is the same as that of the parent entity.
Controlled
Entity

STL Financial
Services Limited

Place of
Incorporation
/Creation

Australia

Type of
Shares

Ordinary

Book Value of
Parent Entity’s
investment in $

% of
shares held

Contribution
to the results
in $000s

2008

2007

2008

2007

2008

2007

5.2m

5.2m

100

100

998

2,137

STL Financial Services Limited has $5.2 million of paid up capital and this has allowed it to satisfy the Australian Financial Services
Licence requirements in respect of minimum net tangible assets. The State of Victoria is State Trustees Limited’s ultimate parent.

Note 26. Economic dependency_
We receive a significant portion of our revenue from the State of Victoria via the Community Services Agreement. Our five-year
agreement expires on 30 June 2012. This contract is between State Trustees Limited and the Department of Human Services.
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Note 27. Related party disclosures_
Key management personnel
State Trustees’ key management personnel include the directors and those executives reporting directly to the Managing Director.
Directors
The following persons held the position of company director during the past financial year:
John Marcard

Dr Irene Irvine

Anthony Fitzgerald

John Price

Linda Berry

Alice Williams (Resigned 31 August 2007)

Daryl Hawkey

Patrick M Burroughs (Appointed 1 May 2008)

Julie Elliott (Appointed 5 March 2008)
Executives
The following held executive positions during the past financial year:
David Johnstone

General Manager Personal Financial Solutions

Ross McDonald

General Manager Executor and Trustees Services

Doug Sumner

General Manager Estate Planning

Andrew Lloyde

General Manager Corporate Strategy and Innovation

Prue Willsford

General Manager Corporate Operations

John Brennan

General Manager People and Culture

Alexandra Axford

General Manager Corporate Relations and Marketing

The remuneration paid to the company directors is tabled below.

Base remuneration
Short-term incentives
Termination benefits
Post-employment benefits
Total remuneration of directors

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

434

433

37

41

-

-

40

34

511

508

The remuneration paid to key executives is tabled below.

Base remuneration
Short-term incentives
Termination benefits
Post-employment benefits
Total executive remuneration

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

1,203

1,076

122

153

-

-

117

92

1,442

1,321

The key management personnel’s remuneration disclosed above for the consolidated entity is consistent with the parent entity.

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
We outline the principles underlying our remuneration policies in the Corporate Governance Report, from page 36. We base
remuneration on the Government Sector Employment Remuneration Panel (GSERP) framework. We structure this as a total
employment cost package, delivered as a mix of cash and prescribed non-financial benefits at the executives’ discretion.
Executives receive no more than 80 per cent of the Managing Director’s base salary (as determined by GSERP). In addition,
they are offered short-term incentives to the maximum of 20 per cent of total base remuneration.

Other transactions with key management or entities related to them
There are no transactions with key management personnel in the financial year ended 30 June 2008 other than
Patrick M Burroughs who is an independent non-executive Director of MLC Nominees Pty Ltd. MLC Nominees Pty Ltd acts
as Corporate Trustee of The Universal Superscheme, one of the defined contribution funds to which State Trustees Limited
contributes. All transactions are conducted on commercial terms and conditions.
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Consolidated entity
2008
$000s

2007
$000s

Parent entity
2008
$000s

2007
$000s

Note 27. Related party disclosures (continued)_
Transactions with STL Financial Services Limited
The parent entity entered into the following transactions during the financial year with its controlled entity. It advanced and repaid
amounts on short-term inter-company accounts. These are repayable on demand.
Dividend payments received
Amounts receivable (current)
Inter-company tax related receivables

-

-

1,958
438
691

1,544
945

All transactions with related parties are conducted on commercial terms and conditions.

Transactions with Premium Funds
The controlled entity, STL Financial Services Limited, acts as the responsible entity of the Premium Funds. In accordance with
the Product Disclosure Statement issued, the economic entity has invested in the funds. The balances invested are as follows at
30 June 2008.
Premium Cash Fund
Premium Fixed Interest Fund
Premium Equity Fund
Premium International Fund
Total investment in premium funds

4,775
4,107
2,372
762

5,210
4,387
2,578
809

2,227
1,915
1,106
356

2,434
2,043
1,204
378

12,016

12,984

5,604

6,059

During the period, STL Financial Services Limited received fees in its capacity as Responsible Entity of the Premium Funds of
$4,214,825 in 2008 (2007: $4,225,892). State Trustees Limited in its capacity as Custodian of the Premium Funds received fees of
$166,128 in 2008 (2007: $154,210). State Trustees Limited received fees in its capacity as Manager and Trustee of the Common
Funds of $3,447,420 in 2008 (2007: $3,111,825).

Directors’ interests in the Premium Funds
Alice Williams, a director of State Trustees Limited who retired during the year,
held the following units in the Premium Funds:

Fund
Premium
Property Fund

Number of
units held

Interest held %

Number of units
acquired

Distributions
paid/payable
by the funds $

2008

2007

2008

2007

2008

2007

2008

2007

n/a

27,439

n/a

0.11

n/a

4,455

n/a

9,604

Note 28. Client assets under management and trusteeship_
Total client assets and liabilities under management and trusteeship were as follows.
These amounts are not reflected in the Statement of Financial Position as they are held in trust on behalf of the entities’ clients.

Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

787,001
206,750
481,340

774,691
216,516
506,911

787,001
206,750
264,493

774,691
216,516
251,195

1,475,091

1,498,118

1,258,244

1,242,402

193,697

193,697

193,697

193,697

1,668,788

1,691,815

1,451,941

1,436,099

Client liabilities

10,434

10,064

10,434

10,064

Total liabilities under management

10,434

10,064

10,434

10,064

Investments, real estate, personal, and other assets
Client investments in Common Funds
Investments in Premium Funds
Assets under management
Assets under custodianship*
n State Investment Trust
Total assets under management and trusteeship

*Assets held under custodianship are held at par value.
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Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

176

154

158

134

80

-

-

-

256

154

158

134

Note 29. Remuneration of auditors_
n Audit or review of the financial statements by the
Victorian Auditor General’s Office (VAGO)

n

Other Audit Services by non-VAGO entities

Total remuneration*

*Total remuneration includes remuneration paid (or due to be paid) to the auditor of the parent entity and its controlled entities.

During the year, the auditors were paid for auditing the Common Funds where State Trustees Limited acts as trustee, and for
Premium Funds, where STL Financial Services Limited acts as the responsible entity. The total amount paid was $353,087
(2007: $353,692), including the $175,904 disclosed. Total remuneration for 2008 includes an amount of $80,000 payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers as part of the transition and financial statements audit of the Premium and Common Funds
outsourced to State Street Australia Limited.

Note 30. Statement of operations by segments_
The consolidated entity provides trustee and related financial services and operates predominantly within Victoria.

Note 31. Registered office_
State Trustees Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal
place of business is: State Trustees Limited
168 Exhibition Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

Note 32. Financial risk management_
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The financial instruments’ main purpose is to generate a return on the group’s investments. The group has various other
financial instruments such as receivables and accounts payable that arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk, market risk, and liquidity and cash flow
risk. These risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results from reasonably possible changes in
the relevant risk variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below.
Information about the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well as compliance with established investment
mandate limits, is also monitored by Management and reported to the Board on a monthly basis.
Credit risk
The group’s credit risk involves counterparties failure to perform contractual obligations that will cause the group to incur financial
losses. We minimise concentrations of credit risk primarily by ensuring:
n we undertake transactions with a diverse range of counterparties, and
n that the majority of transactions we undertake are with clients under our administration.
In addition we monitor receivables balances on an ongoing basis with the result that exposure to bad debts is not significant. We
spread our concentration of credit risk. We have no material exposure to a group of counterparties that we expect to be affected
similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. The carrying amount of financial assets that we record in the financial
statements represents our maximum exposure to credit risk.

Allowance for impairment loss
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 day terms. We recognise an impairment loss when there is
objective evidence that an individual trade receivable is impaired. An impairment loss of $16,000 (2007: $24,000) has been
recognised by the Group.
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:

Consolidated entity

Parent entity

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

2008
$000s

2007
$000s

At 1 July
Charge for the year
Amounts written off

24
(8)

24
-

24
(8)

24
-

At 30 June

16

24

16

24
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Note 32. Financial risk management (continued)_
At 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2008
2007

Total

0–30 days

Consolidated

8,942

8,857

31–60 days 61–90 days
49

3

+91 days
33

Parent

9,022

8,937

49

3

33

Consolidated

6,891

6,803

34

3

51

Parent

7,524

6,354

34

3

51

Other balances within receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that these other balances
will be received when due.
Liquidity and cash flow risk
Liquidity risk is the risk we may experience in either realising assets or otherwise raising sufficient funds to satisfy commitments
associated with the entity’s operations. Cash flow risk relates to the fluctuations in future cash flows from holding financial
instruments. We adopt risk management guidelines that are designed to minimise liquidity and cash flow risk through:
n ensuring substantial cash reserves are held by the entity with major Australian banks.
n ensuring there is no significant exposure to illiquid or thinly-traded financial instruments, and
n applying limits to ensure that there is no concentration of liquidity risk to a particular counterparty or market.
Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on management’s expectations.
To monitor existing financial assets and liabilities as well as to enable an effective controlling of future risks State Trustees
monitors risk through reporting that reflects managements’ expectations of future settlement of financial assets and liabilities.
The risk implied from the values shown in the table below, reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows.

2008
Consolidated Entity
Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Advances to clients*
Interests in managed investment scheme
> Cash Fund
> Fixed interest
> Equity
> International
> Blackrock (external)

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable

2007
Consolidated Entity
Financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Advances to clients*
Interests in managed investment scheme
> Cash Fund
> Fixed interest
> Equity
> International
> Blackrock (external)

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable

<6 months
$000s

6–12
months
$000s

1–5 years
$000s

>5 years
$000s

Total
$000s

5,253
8,926
893

423

622

486

5,253
8,926
2,424

4,774
4,107
2,372
762
666

-

-

-

4,774
4,107
2,372
762
666

27,753

423

622

486

29,284

2,897

-

-

-

2,897

2,897

-

-

-

2,897

<6 months
$000s

6–12
months
$000s

1–5 years
$000s

>5 years
$000s

Total
$000s

4,572
6,867
1,027

488

604

470

4,572
6,867
2,589

5,210
4,387
2,578
809
702

-

-

-

5,210
4,387
2,578
809
702

26,152

488

604

470

27,714

2,153

-

-

-

2,153

2,153

-

-

-

2,153

*Advances to clients are subject to an approval process prior to issue and are regularly reviewed for impairment by divisional management.
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Note 32. Financial risk management (continued)_
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. Market risk is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis,
and minimised through ensuring that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and
investment strategies. We manage exposure to risk by diversifying investments and managing to a conservative asset allocation
model. 30% of our financial investments are in Growth assets (exposure to listed equities both domestic and international through
investment in managed investment schemes) and 70% are invested in defensive assets (exposure to cash and fixed interest through
investments in managed investment schemes).
Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. There is no significant direct foreign exchange risk exposure to the group. We have an indirect exposure to foreign
currency through our investment in the Premium International Fund. This exposure is not deemed significant.
Interest rate risk exposures
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cashflows or the fair values of financial
instruments. The Group has established limits on investments in interest bearing assets, which are monitored weekly.
The Group’s exposure to interest rates is limited to cash and short term deposits as disclosed in Note 4. The Group has no
borrowings.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s income statements to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant.
The sensitivity of the income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on:
n the interest income for one year, based on the cash and cash equivalent financial assets held at 30 June 2008
Accounting Assumptions Variability of interest rates
The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in the interest rates over the last 5 years:
Sensitivity of interest income

Post Tax Profit Higher/Lower

+50 bps

–50 bps

+50 bps

–50 bps

$

$

$

$

30 June 2008

2,875

(2,875)

2,013

(2,013)

30 June 2007

1,875

(1,875)

1,312

(1,312)

Sensitivity of interest income

Post Tax Profit Higher/Lower

Parent Entity

+50 bps

+50 bps

$

$

$

$

30 June 2008

2,438

(2,438)

1,707

(1,707)

30 June 2007

1,698

(1,698)

1,189

(1,189)

Consolidated Entity

–50 bps

–50 bps

Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities decreases as a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual stock or broader economic factors affecting equity markets as a whole. Equity price
risk exposure arises from the Group’s investment in Managed Investment Schemes.
The effect on the balance sheet and income statement due to reasonably possible changes in market factors, as represented by
the equity indices, with all other variables held constant is indicated in the tables overleaf.
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Note 32. Financial risk management (continued)_
Accounting Assumptions Variability of equity price
The basis points sensitivity is based on the volatility of change in the individual indices over the last 10 years.

Consolidated Entity

30-Jun-08

30-Jun-07

Effect on
operating
profit
$

Effect on
Balance
Sheet
$

+0.20%

9,549

9,549

-0.20%

(9,549)

Change in
equity price
%

Effect on
operating
profit
$

Effect on
Balance
Sheet
$

+0.20%

10,420

10,420

(9,549)

-0.20%

(10,420)

(10,420)

Change in
equity price
%

Premium Cash Fund
UBS Australian Bank Bill Index

Premium Fixed Interest Fund
UBS Australian Composite Bond Index

+3%

123,204

123,204

+3%

131,589

131,589

-3%

(123,204)

(123,204)

-3%

(131,589)

(131,589)

Premium Equity Fund
S&P ASX 100 Leaders
Accumulation Index

+11.50%

272,827

272,827

+11.50%

296,508

296,508

-11.50%

(272,827)

(272,827)

-11.50%

(296,508)

(296,508)

+15%

114,295

114,295

+15%

121,425

121,425

-15%

(114,295)

(114,295)

-15%

(121,425)

(121,425)

+15%

99,905

99,905

+15%

105,345

105,345

-15%

(99,905)

(99,905)

-15%

(105,345)

(105,345)

Premium International Fund
MSCI World Ex Australia
Accumulation Index
Black Rock International Fund
MSCI World Ex Australia
Accumulation Index

Parent Entity

30-Jun-08
Change in
equity price
%

Effect on
operating
profit
$

30-Jun-07
Effect on
Balance
Sheet
$

Change in
equity price
%

Effect on
operating
profit
$

Effect on
Balance
Sheet
$

Premium Cash Fund
UBS Australian Bank Bill Index

+0.20%

4,454

4,454

+0.20%

4,868

4,868

-0.20%

(4,454)

(4,454)

-0.20%

(4,868)

(4,868)

+3%

57,459

57,459

+3%

61,276

61,276

-3%

(57,459)

(57,459)

-3%

(61,276)

(61,276)

Premium Fixed Interest Fund
UBS Australian Composite Bond Index
Premium Equity Fund
S&P ASX 100 Leaders
Accumulation Index

+11.50%

127,233

127,233

+11.50%

138,417

138,417

-11.50%

(127,233)

(127,233)

-11.50%

(138,417)

(138,417)

Premium International Fund
MSCI World Ex Australia
Accumulation Index

+15%

53,338

53,338

+15%

56,626

56,626

-15%

(53,338)

(53,338)

-15%

(56,626)

(56,626)

Black Rock International Fund
MSCI World Ex Australia
Accumulation Index

+15%

46,615

46,615

+15%

48,875

48,875

-15%

(46,615)

(46,615)

-15%

(48,875)

(48,875)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
We carry the financial assets and liabilities included in the balance sheet at fair value.
We determine the fair values of financial assets and liabilities:
n with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets as determined with reference to quoted market prices, and
n as determined according to generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Note 33. Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year_
Other than the current volatility in equity markets no circumstance has arisen that has affected or may significantly affect the
company’s operations since 30 June 2008.
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Directors’ Declaration
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of
State Trustees Limited, we state that:
In the opinion of the directors:
a

b

The financial statements and notes of the company and the consolidated entity are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including:
i

giving a true and fair view of the company and consolidated entity’s financial positions
as at 30 June 2008, and of their performances for the year ended on that date,

ii

complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001, and

there are reasonable grounds to believe that State Trustees Limited will be able to pay its
debts when they become due and payable.

On behalf of the Board of State Trustees Limited

John HM Marcard Chairman of Directors

Anthony G Fitzgerald Managing Director

Melbourne, 25 August 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of State Trustees Limited.
The Financial Report
The accompanying financial for the year ended 30 June 2008 of State Trustees Limited, which comprises an income statement,
balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement, a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes to and forming part of the financial report, and the directors’ declaration has been audited.

The Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report
The Directors of State Trustees Limited are responsible for the preparation and the fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the financial reporting
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes:
n establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether dues to fraud or error;
n selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
n making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Corporations Act 2001 and Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report
based on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Standards require
compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements, and that the audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The
audit procedures selected depend on judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used, and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Company Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements published in both the annual report and on the website of State Trustees
Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008. The Directors of the company are responsible for the integrity of the web site. I have
not been engaged to report on the integrity of the web site. The auditor’s report refers only to the statements named above. An
opinion is not provided on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to or from these statements. If users of this
report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from electronic data communications, they are advised to refer to the hard
copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information included in the audited financial report presented on the company’s
web site.

Independence
The Auditor-General’s independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General is not subject to direction
by any person about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the AuditorGeneral, his staff and delegates complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession
and the Corporations Act 2001. I confirm that I have given to the Directors of the company an written independence declaration,
a copy of which is included in the Directors’ Report.

Auditor’s Opinion
In my opinion, the financial report of State Trustees Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
a

giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2008, and of its financial performance
for the year ended on that date; and

b

complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001.

D Pearson Auditor-General
26 August 2008
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Additional copies
Copies of this annual report can be obtained by:
n Visiting our website at www.statetrustees.com.au

This annual report details State Trustees’ business performance for the 2007/08 financial year.
At State Trustees we are committed to transparent and open reporting.
The report provides a concise summary of our performance for the financial year ending
30 June 2008. It reviews our performance against our strategic objectives and records
our financial performance in accordance with the requirements of the State Trustees
(State Owned Company) Act 1994 and other regulatory requirements.

n

Telephoning State Trustees on 9667 6444 or 1300 138 672 (local call cost from outside the metropolitan area)

Location
Our registered office and principal place of business is:
n 168 Exhibition Street, Melbourne, 3000 I Phone 9667 6444
Our customer service offices are at:
Suite 22, 2nd floor, 40 Montclair Avenue, Glen Waverley, 3150 I Phone 9667 6424

n
n

307 Main Street, Mornington, 3931

n

Personal Financial Solutions, 593 Little Bourke Street, Melbourne, 3000

State Trustees’ website can be accessed at www.statetrustees.com.au
For the cost of a local call, you can contact all our offices on 9667 6444 or 1300 138 672
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